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Skanska UK Plc (Registered number: 00784752)

Group Sirategic Report
For The Year Ended 31st December 2021

The Directors present their strategic report of Skanska UK Plc (the *Company') and its subsidiaries (together the *Group”) for
the year ended 31st December 2021.

Business model

Skanska UK Plc generates valuc through the hundreds of projects the Group executcs each year. Every projcct should both be
profitable and delivered in line wiih Skanska's values and ambition to be a leader within sustainability. Skanska UK operations
mainly consist of construction activities. Opcrating units within the construction business collaborate in. various ways, creating
operationa! and financial synergies that generate increased value.

Financial position and review

The Group recorded total revenucs from continuing and discontinued operations of £1,249.6 million (2020: £1,456.3 million)
and profit before interest and 1ax of £72.6 million (2020 £22.6 million) with a margin of 5.8% (2020: 1.6%). Profit before
interest and tax includes a £29.1 million gain.on the disposal of Infrastructure Services discussed below. See Note 35 for details
of the total results including discontinued aperations.

For continuing operations, the Group rccorded revenucs of £1,122.7 million (2020: £1,122.3 million), profit before interest
and tax of£33.7 million (2020: £12.2 million) and a margin of 3.0% (2020: 1.1%). There were no non-recurring exceptionsl
items recorded in the year from continuing operations. For the year ended 31st December 2020, the Group's underlying profit
before tax and interest for its continuing operations, adjusted for non-recurring exceptional charges of £21.7 million, was £33.9
million with a margin of 3.0%. ‘

The Group's total equity incréased by £94.5 million. Total equity attributable to shareholders at the year-end was £362.7
million (2020: £268.2 million), Our consolidated year-end cash and cash equivalents totalled £519.7 million (2020: £422.4
million), an increasc of £97.3 million in the year. The ycar-on-year movement was predominantly due to the procceds from
the sale of Infrastructure Scrvicés operating unit and a number of projects approaching completion, partially offset by the
payment of £16.1 million in dividends, to the immediate parent entity. Cash inflow from operating activitics was £88.3 million
{2020: inflow £6.3 million). The Group has no debt:

The continued impact from the COVID-19 pandemic was managed throughout the year through high levels of project scrutiny
and cash management, with productivity lévels remaining at good tevels throughout the year. Good communication and
continued collaboration with our clicnts and supply parmers were key parts of the Business strategy.

In. 2020, the Group announced that it would withdraw from the Highways Maintenance, Rail Maintenance and Street Lighting
Maintcnance sectors, therefore divesting its Infrastructure Services operating unit. The salc of the operating unit was completed
on 30th April 2021, resulting in the recognition during the year of a pre-tax gain on disposal of£29.1 million. The Infrastructure
Services operating unit has béen classificd in these financial statemenis as a discontinued operation with the results from the
opcrating unit, along with the associated gain on disposal, being separately presented from Group’s underlying continuing
operatidns. In accordance with IFRS 5, depreciation and amortisation of non-current dssets associated with the disposal group
ccased when the busincss was classificd as held for sale effective from 3 1 st December 2020, Had depreciation and amoriisation
confinucd up until the date of disposal, the pre-tax gain on the sale, net of disposal costs, would have been £31.6 million.
Further information on the sale of Infrastructure Scrvices can be found in Note 10.

The salc of Infrastructure Services and the assaciate decision to exit or wind down key contracts within the utilities sector were
made after a strategic review, which has led the Business to concentrate on the infrastructure and building miarkets. The dim
is to bring more focus to our cusiomer relationships and service delivery, as well as create greatcr alignment between the
Company’s activities and our approach in other parts of the world.
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Principle risks and uncertainties

The Group’s principal risks and uncertainties are reluted to the contracts it undertakes to perform. Expasure to credit, interest
rate and liquidity risk arises in the normal course of the Group's business:

e Management has a crcdit policy in place. Credit cvaluations are performed on all prospective customers prior (o entering
info construction contracts and exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. At the statcment of financial
position date there was no significant concentrations of credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the carrying amount of trade reccivables and amounts duc from customers for coniract work at the staternent of financial
position date.

»  The Group does not seek io reducc exposure to fluctuations in intercst rates through the use of derivative financial
instruments. The Group mecls its day to day working capital requircments through an inter-Company UK paoling
arrangement and does not have any bank debt or other external borrowings or facilities.

»  Liquidity/cash flow risk is the risk that an entity will cncounter difficulty meeting obligations associated with financial
liabilities. The Group aims to mitigate these risks by setting and monitoring cash flow targets and by assessing credit
worthiness of all material business partners.

e  COVID-19 introduced incrcased risk to all areas of the Group during 2020. A risk averse culiure coupled with open and
collaborative rclationships with our stakcholders has and will continue to mitigate the impact on delivery and financial
performance.

s A ycar on since the UK lcft the EU, Brexit has not had a material financial impact on the Group. A reason for this is that
we have worked closcly wiih our key supply chain to ensure the fallout from the EU exit (and COVID-19 retum to work)
is managed from a risk perspective including availability of warkforce. The Business continues to review all aspects of
how this legislative change could impact its operation and cnsure steps are in place to mitigaie any financial degradation.

COVID-19 Pandemic

Whilst variants of COVID-19 persist, the UK's cconomic bounce back was faster than predicted as spending surged after
lockdown measures were lifted. Restrictions onsitc and in offices were removed across the Group at the end of the first half of
2021, as per government guidelines and policy. Key reporting and review processes implemented at the start of the pandemic
continued to be used, coabling management to continue concentrating on cash. management and managing potential financial
exposure on a proactive basis.

Throughout the pandemic, the fundamental values that underpin our business have been prominent in all decision making,
Clear communication and standing side by side with our dedicated and exceptional employees have been key, alongside a
supportive and collaborative level of engagement with our clients and supply chain partners. The Group's exisling Health &
Safety framework and culturc has once again proven to be a real strength of our operational delivery, keeping everyone safe.

‘Detailed monitoring of the workforce and its health continues to be paramount in Management's strategy, cnsuring their safety
and also the safety of our partners.

Major contract wins

A428 Black Cut to Caxton Gibbet — Delivery of a new 10-mile dual carriageway op the A428, worth £507 million. Skanska is
responsible for the design and build of the scheme, which will improve journcys between Milton Keynes, Bedford and
Cambridge.

30 South Colonnade — Structural refurbishment. of an existing 11-storey commercial-office building, YY London, on behalf
of its customer, Quadrant and funds managed by Oaktree Capital Management, ot Canary Wharf, London. Skanska will install
the new cladding, construct three new office floors and a new reception. The value to the Group is £135 million.

Castlewood House — Construction of an [1-storey office building with retail and restaurant usc, as well as 18 residential
apartmcats. Mechanical, electrical and public health services installation will also be undertaken by Skanska. The 260,000 sq.
ft project in Londan is worth £83 million to Skanska.

HS2 Area East — Construction of 2,000 piles for the Skanska Costain STRABAG joint veniure, which is working to deliver
the London tunncls on behalf of HS2. The piling cantract is worth £93 million. The project will provide foundations for two
new bridge structures, one of the largest currcnt open-cul retaining boxes in Burope and the new Euston Cavern shaft, As pant
of the project, the team will be devcloping new techniques ta reduce carban, including the use of low carbon concrete.
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Laser Focus & Further Review

In late 2017 the Laser Focus Plan was launched wijth the aim to ensure we remain a profitablc and sustainable business. With
an over-arching objective to hit or beat tender margin on every contract, the first phase of the plan was lo focus on five key
areas: Right people, Design control, Understanding and applyiog the deal, Quality, and Forecasting and Reporting, The second
phase of the Lascr Focus Plan was launched in the first quaricr of 2018, which following a strategic review of our markets and
sectors, which as already discussed in the financial position and review, resulted in a rcorganisation of the Group's Operating
Units; reducing the number from 9to 7.

2019 saw a consolidation of the plan with the Group ensuring each key area had been fully embedded. Improved Projcct
performance, continued de-risking of the Group financials, increased underlying Operating Income % and the strengthening
of the Balance Sheet has given Management a strong belief that the plan is having the impact it was designed to achicve,

In early 2020, the Group announced that it would withdraw from the Highways Maintenance, Rail Maintenance and Street
Lighting Maintcnance sectors, thercfore divesting its Infrastructure Services operating unit. The sale of the operating unit was
completed in 2021. In addition, the decision was madc to cxit key contracts within the Utilities operating unit, running these
down, which resulted in a closure of the unit at the end of 2021.

Governance Review & Update

In 2018, Skanska AB undcrtook a review of its Governance framework and associated procedures and processes. In 2020 and
2022, as per guidance from Skanska AB which dictates a review should be carried out every two years, the Group completed
a similar process to ensure our framework was aligned and could achicve similar benefits. These béncfits include improving
effectiveness, continued reduction of risk throughout the Group and to help each and every employee live by Skanska values.
The updated Governance framework is now leaner, has much clearer structure and is accessible to all users.

In addition to the above, since 1st January 2018, the UK Group has applied the Wates Corporate Governance Principles for
Large Privaté Companics which enhanccs the Skanska AB’s povernance framework that the Group has adhered to historically.

During the COVID-19 pandemic use of cnhanced 1T has ensurcd that the business and senior management have been able to
ensure governance and contro!l has remained consistent throughout.

Lastly, the implementation of a new Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system has continued, with governance, standard
procedures and controls being a key €lement of its design and build.

Values provide business benefits

We want our strang Skanska values io guide cverything we do and they are essential to contributing to socicty. Increasingly,
employces want to wark for companies with clear values. We are seeing more customers and partacrs choose Skanska in part
because of our values. Through what we do and how we work, we help ensure sustainable futures for our people, customers,
and communitics. We focus on the sustainability areas in which we can make the most significant positive contributions:
Safety, Ethics, Green, Community Investment, and Inclusion and Diversity.

All of these areas relate to our core business and cxpertise and are interconnected.
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Safety, health and wellbeing

During 202! we continued to maintain our focus on improving our culture and performance in the areas of safcty, health and
wellbeing (SHTW). During this period, we have delivered a reduction in number of potential fatalitics 1o the lowest level ever.
This has been as a result of our programme on becoming outstanding at Lifting, Loading and Lowering operations. The lost
time accident rate (LTAR) has returned to pre pandemic levels, and we are continuing to evaluate the reasons behind the
reduction. Our initial analysis identifics several factors for the reduction in LTAR during the period. They can be summed up
as being, clear on expected behaviours, clear communication on the importance of compliance and the and immediacy of the
risk to health of workers and others they come into contact with. Work is being undertaken fo determine how these key learning
points can be applicd across all operations at all times.

The performance of the business was overshadowed by a fatality on one of our projecis. Following the incident significant
work has been undertaken with the HSE, manufacturers and plant operators to establish the cause of the incident. As a result
of learnings from the incident, we will be removing certain types of equipment from our operations. We have supporicd the
industry in raising awareness of the risk of injury during the operation of this type of equipment and provision of additional
operator training. We are supporting the work of several parties to review and consider amending the EN standard to prevent
the possibility of being crushed by a siabiliser.

During 2021 we have continued to progress our work on moving the focus on safety and health from site operations into the
design and planning stage. By climination and substitution of the work activities to reduce exposure to risk, we are confident
we will further improve safety, health and wellbeing as well as operational efficiency and quality. One ouistanding example
shows that we reduced exposure to the risk including falls from height, items falling and manual handling by 40,000 hours on
one work aciivity on one project.

We have continued to comply with COVID-19 legislation and guidance and have followed the changes introduced during the
year. Our gencral approach has been more cautious than the government position and requirements have been eased once the
impact of changes have becn given time to work through socicty. Work on and communication of our wellbeing programme
including mental health has beea increased during this time. This has been well received and we continuc to build on our
menial health programme. During 2022 we arc expanding our Mental Health programme focus from understanding mental
health into creating the right cnvironment for peoplc to thrive.

Our continued with our Injury-free cavironment programme (IFE) which is now in its twelfth year and we are cumrently
reviewing the programme with a view of updating the programme and adding to the programme with a focus on risk awareness.
Our mental health programme continucs to be effective, and the mental health ambassador community continues to thrive and
support the programme. An independent survey of 97 of our customers, 246 supply chain partners and 2465 employees rated
Skanska as a high performer in terms of SHW. We havc continued to maintain 1S045001 certification.

Ethics

Within the Group we work in line with Skanska AB's Code of Conduct to increasingly act in a sustainable, transparcnt and
responsible manncr, to better meet the long-term demands of the Group's shareholders, customers and employees, as well as
socicty at large. Our aim is to ensure all projects reflect our purpose and are not only profitable but are delivered without
ethical breaches and with a transparent and inclusive culture. During 2021 we maintained our focus on ethics leadership by
retraining all our employees on our Code of Conduct and ensuring all new cmployees are truined before they start work with
Skanska. In addition, our employees are required to take part in regular 'dilemma’ discussions where they debate how they
would approach a varicty of situations. A key thread throughout the year was an action plan locking at our ethical processcs
in areas such as inclusion and diversity, modem slavery, supply chain understanding, etc. As well as internal communications,
we place additional focus on understanding our ethical responsibilities in rclation to partners and supplicrs. We developed our
processes for scrutinising the ethical culture of potential partners, and to further engage our supply chain we work to ensure
aur Supplier Code is discussed in start-up meetings with suppliers, and we include cthics as an agenda item at our various
supplicr engagement cvents.

Tn 2022, a total of 18 reports of alleged breach of the Code of Conduct were received by the Skanska UK Ethics Committee
(2021: 37). Cases were categoriscd in line with the topics in Skanska's Code of Conduct. The largest number of reports were
concerned with HR-related matters, such as behaviour in the workplace. Other frequent categories of reporis were health and
safety (including COVID-19) and Company property, Across all categories, 2 cases detcrmined a breach of the Code of
Conduct (2020: 8), however ncither of them were considered a high risk to the business.

W
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Eanvironment

The Company and its subsidiary underiakings are required to pursue environmental policics that comply with relevant
legislation and siandards applicable ta their particular disciplines. Beyond this, Skanska UK, in line with Skanska Group, is
commiited to protecting the environment and making a positive contribution to 8 more sustainable world through improving
the environmental performance of all our products and services. Furthermore, Skanska UK is committed to operating with
net-zero carbon emissions by no later than 2045, and since the publication of this abjective in 2019 has commiited significant
resources into developing industry leading de-carbonisation capability. Our aim is to be the most respected contractor by our
customers for our approach to sustainability and in particularly our low carbon capability. Key areas of progress / highlights
include:

e  Continuing our excellent track record in operational cnvironmental management, we leamt from our experience in
2020 of working with different operating parameters resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic, and as a result our
environmental management performance bas steadily improved across all of our projects. Qur internal environmeatal
lcadership team continucs to focus on improved monitoring and reporting, and on delivering better imerventions
against causes of environmental incident near misses. An example is the development and roll-out of a new bespoke
environmental compliance training scheme which is targeted at site and operational leadership roles and is more
comprehensive than industry standard environmental site management fraining courses.

»  Supporting winning profitable sustainable business through continued engagement with aur clicnts on sustainability
performance and maintaining our green brand through demonstrating visible industry leading influence. n 2021
Skanska UK was involved with scveral industry sustainability events, such as hosting the 2021 Highways UK event
as the ‘sustainability sponsor’. Notably, Skanska mainiained a substantial presence at the COP26 UN Climate Change
Conference in Glasgow, with representatives attending both the Green Zone and Blue Zone, as well as the Sustainable
Innovation Forum, Skanska UK CEO Gregor Craig and Skanska Group SVP Sustainability Lena Hok both spoke at
cvents in the Bluc Zonc. Other industry appointments included Skanska UK CEO Gregor Craig being appointed to
the Construction Leadership Council’s (CLC) ‘C02nstructZero Advisory Board, Director of Environment Adam
Crossley maintaining his appointments as Chair of the UK Green Building Council’s (UKGBC) Contractors' Forum
and member of the Construction Leadership Council’s Green Construction Board (GCB), as well as being appoinied
to the steering group of the UKGBC's Whole Life Carbon Roadmap project. Further to these appointments, Skanska
UK collaborated with other industry bodies to shape and then commit to two cross-industry net-zero schemes: Climate
Group’s Steel Zero initiative; which is a pledge to purchasc net-zero by 2050, and Cambridge Centre for Smart
Infrastructure and Construction’s Carbon Reduction Code, to which Skanska UK was one of the few *champion’ level
signatories. Skanska UK also maintained engagement ‘with two key green indusiry bodies, the All-Party
Parlisamentary Group for the Environment (APEG) and the Supply Chain Sustainability School (SCSS).

e  Skanska UK continucs to deliver on our multi-year strategy to significantly improve our capability as a business to
de-carbonise at a quicker rate than ourindustry, and to support our clients in their de-carbonisation journeys, following
our 2019 commitment to opcrate with net-zero carbon emissions by 2045. The plan comprises 6 focus areas:

o  Skills and capabilities for key roles: During 2021 we trained over a hundred key staff in project
leadership, pracurement, design and commercial on carbon reduction skills;

o Carbon data / measurement: We continue to publish an annual transparent estimaic of our direct and
indirect (supply chain) emissions to the market;

o Digital cost and carbon management tools: We have invested in project level digital carbon and cost
management tools;

o Net-zcro maierials (focussing on concrete and sicel): We have established a low carbon materials
expert group and have trialled a varicty of low carbon alternatives across our projects;

o Net-zero plant and transport: We mandated the use of hydro-treated vegetable oil (HVO) biofuel
across our direct-hired plant, purchasing over 1m liires and avoiding circa 3000 tC02e, and we
continue roll-out of electric vehicles across our company car fleet, with circa 25% of our fleet
currently clectric; and

o  Supply chain collaboration: We begun business-to-business collaborations with a small collection of
sclected supplicr partners.

The delivery of our nct-zero and broader environmental objectives is governed internally through Skanska UK's overall
business planning process and is represenied at the top management team. Externally we continue to demonstrate our
credentials through a range of certifications, including continued verification under the Achilles *Carbon Reduce® programme
(formeérly Certified Emissions Measurement and Reduction Scheme (CEMARS)), maintenance of 1SO14001:15 for
environmental management, and successfully maintaining external re-certification to the PAS2080 Carbon Management in
Infrastructure specification. Our aim is to invest in environmental performance and sustainable business and, through continual
improvement ond innovation, lo maintain our industry leading position.
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Streamlined Encrgy and Carbon Reporting

84752)

The table below details the Group's energy and carbon consumption for the year ended 3 1st December 2021,

T 2021 -2020 2010 2020 2010
z : ) S actvity N Tcoz o Tcoz
GHG Scops and Emlsdon Source 58§ Tcoze KWh  mocific oxcluslons|  dota’ TC020 | pocotime | T99%° | tamline
. I3 5 . . g . .
° “Excludes disconiinued Exciudos dluonunuud Includos dlscontinysd
acilvislos'{1) ctivitios (1) activitios
“|Scapo 1
Gos & Skanska, offics | 27| 1,348,548 Hor o% 388 535 18 535
and faciliflos :
E.mlsalnn.-. frnm Skanska controlled company .
cars and commercial vehicles M 2375 10,048,351 Monz 0% 4707 15,650 9,788 16,041
CGas G bought by,
Y N ko tor uae of
Sitg fued {Gas o] & HVO) conaumed by Skanska S . ) ! ) .
m'cmwwm sites M 4,128 | 29,821,330 mﬂhﬂl’m;!:a'i:x‘ 0% 5613 8,405 7.378 6,813
fmnaged by Skanska
:;alz:: oil bumed ot Skanska controlled 14 56,382 None 0% 25 48 2% a8
|Fuslitve efriisafons from_ alr condnlonlna [ . . S
Skanskn controliod facililas Exchsdnd on aotariay 0% 22 50 13 50
Biornass bumed for haating at Skansko ; R
contrafied fickilias 7] 2 154,600 | Exchuded on matortalty 0% 2 . 2
Scops 1 Total [10744]  22639] 17,599] 23437}
2
Elgeticily Consumption (Location based) M 1,278 6.01'(.103 8 o by 0% 1,541 11,089 1,541 11,099
. - | Skansin budt cenmumsd
Electrichty sed in BEV comipany vehiclas M, 9 41,335 oy o e
Electricity Consumption (Market basod reecting 1o of faiciites
purchasing of REGQ alocticity) ° 650 0% 573 11,099 2 .05
Scopo 2 Total (Location basad) [ a59]_ w098  4.541]  +1,089])
‘Scopo 1 & 2 Totnl Emissions - [23ea]_ 33738 10,140 34,538]
Intandty Motric {omissions I Emiliion 7.2 | YY) Iv 1ol 434 | 2]
Scopa 3
Purchosod goods and sondces o| 1on7 Only rh IrpRct | oo 101426 | 3s7,sis| 28878 380,083
Capital goods . o - Mot quantified ) - -
Fugl and energy relsled activities o} 2,343 Mong 0% 2,630 7,321 4,317 4,582
Up n traf ton and distdbution o §,482 100% 8,638 8,478 8,808 8,785
) . Viists dispesed recorts
'Wasla genoralien in operatlans (o] 5571 but\\‘utn uwwmxm 30% ;.919 3,641 3,844 3641
Enviasiona catrmizd .
Busingss Iraved M 7 o et % 1,504 4,260 1,688 4,659
Ervloyens commaing
lan carmpany tuel cerd )
Employee commuting o] 1,183 counind in gcopo | as 0% 2337 4,250 2,024 5,213
con ot necurataly he
brosion out
|Upstream leesed ansain ) o 589 » 100% 1,823 703 1522 703
Downstred portatlon asid distrbutt o . N quaniiod A i
|Procassing of sald products o] - Nt quantilicd - .
End-ofife treatmord of seld products o - Not quantifiod - -
Doiwn straam loased assels o - Nt yot qrisntiied - -
Franchisas (o] - ot relovant . .
Out of Scope X o
5 Emiasions rekiing to B
Bioganic emissions - o 3,337 VO fudl trihs 0% - - 82 -
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(1) Emissions data for 2021 exclude 21,899 TCO02¢ from the Infrastructure Services operating unit which was disposed of in
the year .and presented as a discontinued operation in these financisl statements. To increase comparability, restated
emissions data for 2020 and the 2010 basc year excluding Infrastructure Services has been presented above, alongside

the previously published data.

Reasons for Change in Emissions

Carbon cmissions continuc'to drop from our 2010 base linc and good progress has been made reducmg carbon infensity through
a range of carbon reduction policies and initiatives across the Company. Carbon reduction is a straiegic focus of the
Company’s 2024 busincss plan, and a six-point action plan has been implemented to accelerate emissions reduction.
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Emissions from Skanska commercial vehicles and company cars has dropped considerably frum 2020. This is due to the
combination of three factors, the completion of 2 major framewark contract which had a heavy reliance on road vehicles,
COVID-19 related travel disruption and the implementation of the Company’s Electric First car policy. At the end of 2021
Battery Electric Vehicles (BEVs) made up 19% of ihe company car flcet, 41% of the car flect is classified as Ulra Low
Emission Vehicles and the fleet CO2 average was 70.3gCO2/&m. The Electric First car policy complements the Company’s
flexible working and green travel allowance policies representing savings in both direct business travel and indirect staff
commuting cmissions.

Skanska's Low Carbon Fuel policy was implemented in April 2021 which started the phascd introduction of sustainably
sourced hydrotreated vegetable oil (HVO) fuel across our site activitics. 49% of site fuel consumed in 2021 was HVO lcading
to 4,400t of avoided CO2e emissions. Without this policy emissions in this arca would have been significantly increased on
2020. Under our Low Carbon Fuel policy, we continue to expand the ust of electric- and hydrogen-powered plant dlongside
advance biofucls.

Quantification and Reporting Methodology

Skanska UK holds certification to 1ISO14064-1:2018 and we use this, UK Government publications and the Greenhouse Gas
Protocol to guide our emission quantification and reporting. Estimations and cxclusions for discontinued activities have
been clearly identified.

In 2021 Skanska UK achicved platinum certification through the Carbon Reduce scheme (formerly CEMARS) recognising
11 years of ycar-on-year carbon reductions across our dircct emissions. We are proud of this achievement but continue to
work towards our overall goal of net zero emission across all Greconhouse Gas scopes by 2045.

Skanska UK reports cstimates for scape 3 emissions associated with the activities of our supply chain across all our projects.
We continue to wark on improving the data on these cmissions so we can more accurately target reductions initiatives with
our customers through the supply chain.

Organisational Boundary

Skanska UK uses the financial control approach and JV emissions are included on an equity share bases.

Base Year

2010 is our chosen bascline year which is thé first year of formal emission reporting under the Carbon Reduce scheme.

External Assurance Statement

Emission reports are audited annually to a reasonable level of assurance and documents supporting this certification can be
found at hitps://www:toitu.co.nz/our-members/members

Carbon Offsets

The Group has not purchascd any carbon offsets in the period.

Great People

In 2021, we devcloped our 2024 business plan. To deliver our business goals; operating safely, efficiently and innovatively,
we outlined how we will continuously cngage with and develop our people to build an inclusive, values driven and
performance-based culwre. A critical platform area is the people and culture action plan, which has three carc focus arcas.
Leadership and culture, skills and capabilitics and best employee experience.

Our purpose, we build for a better socicly and our arganisational values - Care for Lifc, Act Ethically and Transparcntly, Be
Better Together and Commit to Customers ~ remain unchanged, and continue (o underpin everything we do, forming the
foundations of the business plan. We recognise that building for a better society is more than just what we do, but also how
we do it. Tn 2021 we developed a new ‘living our values® behavioural framework to support the delivery of the plan.  This
framewark is a tool to communicate the expected behaviours from all Skanska employees and replaces the 2015 Skanska
Lcadership Profile.

We know that being successful requires the right behaviours and skillsets not just for today buit also for the future. We remain
committed 1o ensuring that our project teams arc sct up to deliver the best outcomes for our customers and their cusiomers,
and to easure we deliver a sustainable financial rcturn for the Group. Our ‘Right People' and redesigned workforce planning
processes underpin the way we resource our projects throuph the entire project lifecycle, ensuring we get a diverse balance of
sector expericnce, potential and delivery expertise in operational and leadership roles. ‘

We encourage our peaple to share in the success of the Group by panticipating in SEOP, the Skanska employce ownership
program. In 2021, 34% of our employees chose to invest in the Skanska Group through SEOP participation.
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Recruitment

The Group welcomed 656 new employees in 2021 of which 29% were female and 23.6% identificd as being from a minority
ethnic heritage. In common with the majority of companies worldwide, we saw an increase in our voluntary turnover to 1.1,4%.
Over 500 people successfully applicd for new roles internally, kecping imporiant skills and expericnce within the business.

The stability of Skanska helped to increasc our attractiveness in the marketplace, leading to increased application numbers
with over 20,000 applications for ncarly 1,400 vacancies (for temporary and permanent roles) and saving over £2 million in
agency fees through direct hiring,.

Careers and devclopment

During the early stages of the pandemic, we put our face-to-face development programmes on hold, and moved devclopment
focus .into our online e-learning platform 'Skanska Academy’ which is accessible to all employzes. In 2021, many of our
programmes recommenced but were delivered virtually and we ook the apportunity to redesign our formal leadership
programmes, to ensure they align to the new business plan. These will be introduced in 2022, A virlusl *edjusting to change’
programme was also introduced, which included topics such as children’s mental health, building resilience and coping with
loss and bereavernent to support employees respond to the challenges that the pandemic brought.

Our annual performance and development review process, formally includes both an end of year and a mid-year discussion.
In 2020/21, we provided guidance to managers to extend their discussions beyond cmployee performance against set goals
and behavioural expectations, to include conversations on work life balance, mental health and carecer aspiration. The annual
cycle is recorded within an online system, Skanska Talent. Managers were also strongly encouraged to extend.their discussions
beyond these formal cycles to enstre cmployees were provided with regular support in these challenging times.

Our personal development portfolio is very comprehensive, decmonstrating our commitment to both technical training and
management development. This commitment provides the Group with the highest levels of employee competence, together
with the strongest calibre of peaple and business leadership. We collaborate with leading business schools both in the UK and
internationally to provide our leaders with leading edge and stimulating development and growth. Our continued approach to
development and promoting from within wherever possible means we that are able to grow much of the leadership talent we
will nced for the future.  An example is our Design Management Academy, which is a support and leaming framework
providing access to guidance, key reference material and training to all those involved in the management of design within
Skanska. Established in 2020, the academy continues to provide world-leading content and best practice to our employees.

Our Talent and Succession process is run annually, with quarterly interventions ensuring regular progress is made in managing
and developing key talent. We use robust psychometric assessments deployed by professionally-trained intemnal and external
assessors to validate potential, wiih assessed employces having their own iargeted devclopment plan, allowing them 1o
continually grow their skills and accelerate their careers within the organisation. During 2021, 57 internal assessments were
completed by our in house British Psychological Society accredited assessor, with a further 45 compleied by our cxternal
pariners.

Inclusion and Diversity

Our inclusion and diversity (1&D) vision is all about dclivering high performance by enabling everyonc to bring their whole
sclf to work. We are clear that everyone should be treated with dignity and respeet within the workplace, and in 2021 we
commissioncd a research study by an external company, named *Our Lived Experience’, to find out how people in Skanska
UK felt about inclusion, and to identify the ways that peaple from different groups and backgrounds expericnce our culture,
Following the research, workshops took place with our Executive Management Team and senior leaders across the business
to understand the report and to be clear upon how being more inclusive will suppori delivery of our business objectives. Clear
strategic narratives about why inclusion is important to cach business arca, was created as an ouicome.

We reworked ihe 1&D govemance, to ensure inclusive strategic decision making, léadership and behaviours arc embedded
across the business and there is alignment to business and network objectives.

We have established an 1&D leaders group (made up of the CEO and representatives from senior leadership, HR, and our
employee neiwork leads) and & working group (deparimental responsibility for 1&D leads) who come together three times a
year to share and leam from one another. Specifically within the leaders’ group, we focus on creating an environment for the
two-way sharing of perspcctives between network leads and senior leaders.

To provide further insight alongside the Lived Experience Project, we analyse data from our pulse and engagement surveys,
alongside ‘business as usual’ processes such as recruittnent and performance reviews, o ensure we understand the differcncés
in the responses of different demographic groups.

We continued to promote our ‘Flex-it” framework which aims to provide all employees with informal flexibility about where
and when they work. It marks a significant shift in working patterns for many of our people, allowing them to optimisc their
personal productivity and wellbeing. It is a key step in creating and implementing new ways of working that reflect our
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changing times and circumstances and is fundamental 10 making the construction industry attractive to all. We have sa far
chosen not to impose business wide expectations on working patterns, but rather to cnable teams to find suitable patterns of
work to deliver business priorities alongside enabling individual needs to be accommodated. We continue to watch carefully
how this is reccived by employee groups and those working for the business.

We continued our flexible working pilots with Timewise and Build UK on an industry-wide flexible working programme to
identify barriers and find solutions to adopting flexible working practices on project sites, as we are committed Lo ensuring we
find flexible working solutions for all types of roles, including those with construction site restrictions.

People cngagement
We remain focused on creating and maintaining high levels of people engagement and enablement.

In 2021 we continued opportunities for two-way communication through regular CEO ‘all hands’ bricfings, leadership ‘talk
time’ sessions, and regular pulse surveys. Wc asked general questions around topics such as anxiety to retumning after a period
of lockdown, and followed up on previous questions around topics such as desired working patierns. The responses have
shaped our flexible working approach, mental health support and COVID-19 testing procedure.  Results show us that we
maintained a high level of engagement and enablement, with nearly 97% of respondents in February 2021 expressing positive
feclings towards self and/or company.

Market Making

.

The Group's business plan 2024 is to pursuc a markel penctration strategy to achieve profitable revenue growth. This is
achieved through a customer-centric approach that secks to maximizes market share in chosen sectors.

To ensure the success of this markel sirategy, there is an ongoing asscssment of the investment appetite at both sector level
and at the level of the customer. This assessment determines the projected demand for the core capabilitics of those producis
and services wherc the Group has a proven track record of successful delivery, Assessment of the competitor environment
provides further analysis that informs the Group on its most likely route to achieving its market strategy.

The Group aims to be an industry leader in listening, understanding and acting on customers’ nceds. To achicve this ovicome
the capabilitics of the Group continue to develop in the following areas:

¢  Customer account management — A framework for customer account management that is developed and embedded
across the Group, This includes a customer classification asscssment that is reviewed annually, where customer
insight provides a net promoior score asscssment.

»  Early engagement with customers — To enable an optimised outcome for the customer and for the Group.

e  Secctor & customer insights — Assessment of the suitability of the current market strategy to inform management of
the fuiure sales pipeline. The Group continues to invest in. customer relationship management software (Saleslorce)
io cnable this.

»  Create cusiomer-specific value propositions — providing a deeper understanding and active promotion of the Group's
products & services to cnable cross-sclling to customers.

The values of the Group arc assesscd through the customer measurcment programme. This continues to inform that the Group's
values provide a differentiator to customers and that thesc are a desirable part of the offer to the market. To this end, the
strategic alignment of existing and future customers is assessed with the Group’s own valucs. Where there is a closc alignment
of shared values, there is cvidence of repeat business with those customers.

For the year 2021, mitigation mcasures for the events of both Brexit and the global COVID-19 pandemic required the Group
to continue to apply an appropriate risk management approach, This required a continuation of close assessment of the market
supply and demand pressures relating to both. For both cvents the Group's market strategy has proven to be resilient where
the outlook is stronger than the general market in which thc Group operates.

The Group continues to apply strong risk management procedures at both corporate and project level. This ensures we select
the right projects thai will cantinue to deliver the expectations of our customers and shareholders.

Early contractor involvement

Demand continues to increase among the Group's customers for help ‘with designing functional and cost-saving solutions.
Joining a project at an carly stage aids the Group, in early identification and management of risk with its customers, as well as
in helping customers be more successful in their core businesses. This is a procurement route that we increasingly demand
during our opportunity selection phase.
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Operational Efficiency

We remain focused ‘on. imiproving the aperational efficiency of our business, especially construction projects. This means
enabling project teams to deliver their contracts faster and at Jower cost throughout the whole project dife cycle.

We do this by:
Improving productivity through
s Rapid adoption of new digital ways of working
s  Deployment of Tnnovation and industrialisation specialist expertise
o  Coordination and prioritisation of productivity improvement opportunities
Managing our supply chain to
s Obtain best value from the right supply chain
e  Ensurc collaboration for supplicr innovation and decarbonisation
e  Achieve efficient and sustainable procurement and supply chain processes
Providing Enginccring consultancy services to
o  Improve the cfficiency of construction using MMC
o Increasc the provision of specialist. technical expertise in. our construction projects
o ‘Manage engineering related Risk and Opportunity

The Group has identified project productivity as un area that, by undergoing a significant transformation over the next Business
Plan period, can help us achi¢ve our business objectives. We are focusing on the adoption of technology and the exploitation
of data to improve our project productivity. A tactical cffort has been approved at Group level that will deliver skills, tools,
and processes to makc our projects more productive..

We have successfully retained 1SO19650 BIM Level 2 certification at Group level, which certifics our business as being
capable of collaborating with project team stakeholders digitally. This is a requircment on all publicly funded projeets. We
have also gained. ISO56000 accreditation at Group level. This siandard certifies that we have a suitible framewark to
implement, maintain, and improve Innovation Management Systems. This accreditation supports our Group efforts to
collaborate with our customers to improve the quality and value from their projects.

Looking ahead we will continue to focus on the well-being of our people and our supply chain, The post pandemic world is
still evolving, and this includes the balance between remote and co-lacated working. We will strengthen the relationships with
our key supply chain through increascd communication, closer collaboration, and ethical und transparent behaviours. Equally,
we will support our dircet teams with continuous updates and communication of our Charter, which clearly articulates our
purpose, corc operating principles, core commitments, and shared mindset and behaviours. We will continue Lo strive for an
inclusive workforce and supply chain,

Compliance with the Modern Slavery Act 2015

The Group is commitied to cnsuring that all of its business operations are free from involvement with slavery or human
trafficking and this it secks to ensure, primarily, through iis Sustainable Procurement Policy.

The Skanska Cade of Conduct and Skanska Supplier Code of Conduct include express provisions for Fair Working Conditions,
based on the Universal Declaration of Human Rights, the conventions of the Intemational Labour Organisation and the UN's
Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights. The Code of Conduct rcqunres eraployccs to treat each other with respect
and dignity and to raise concems about unfair working conditions. The Supplicr Code of Conduct extends these principles to
sub-contractors and suppliers,

The Group ensures therc is enhanced madem slavery education and awareness through our external Supply Chain
Sustainability School with procurement guidance notes and toolbox talks for projects and contracts being made available to
the School's 50,000+ members.

Skanska's Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking Pollcy, which provides greaier detail on our approach to the eradication of
these issues from our business and our supply chain, is published via a link on the homcpage ‘of our website. This updated
policy was approved by the Board of Directors of the Company on 20th June 2022, 1t is reviewed and published on an annual
basis.

Market & Outlook

As we closed 2021, we booked over £1.3 billion of orders in our chosen markets, supported by £519.7 million of cash with no
leverage or ebi, placing the Group in a strong position. We remain mindful of the market conditions driven by the wider
economic and gea-political challenges and continue to work proactively with both qur cusiomers and supply chain to monitor
and mitigate headwinds in commodity and cnergy costs to proteci the financial performance of the Business in the short,
medium- and long-term.
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Section 172 Companies Act 2006

Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 requires a Director of a Company to act in the way he or she considers, in good faith,
would most likely promote the success of the Company for the benefit of its members as a whole. In doing this, section 172
requires Directors to have regard to, amongst oiher matters, the:

- likely consequences of any decisions in the long-term,

- interests of the Company's employees;

- need.to fosier the Company's business relationships with suppliers, customers and others,

- impact of the Company's opcrations on the community and environment,

- desirability of the Company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct; and

- need to act fairly as between members of the Company.

Ini discharging our section 172 duties we have regard to the matters sef ouf above. In addition, we also havc regard to other
factors which we: consider relevant to the decision bemg made. By considering the Companys purpose, vision and values
together with iis strategic prioritics and having a process in place for decision making, we aim to make sure that our decisions
-are consistent and predictable.

We delegate authority for day-to-day management of the Company to senior leadership teams and then engage management
in setting, approving and oversceing execution of the business strategy and related policies. Board mectings are held: rcgularly
in which the’ Directors consider the Company's activities and make decisions. As a part of those meetings the Directors reccive
informiation in a rungc of different formats to ensure that they have regard to section 172 indtters when making relevant
decisions.

The Company's key stakeholders are its workforce, customers, supplicrs and the local communities in which it opcrates. The
views of and the impact of the Campany's activities on those stakeholders ate an important consideration- for the Directors
when making relevant decisions. The size and spread of both the Company's stakeholders and the Skanska Group means that
generally our stakcholder crigagement takes place at an operational and Group level, We find that as well as being a more
efficient and effective approach, this also helps us achieve a greater positive impact on environmental, social and other issues
than by working alone as an individual Company. For details of the engagement which takes place with the Group's
stakcholders please sec page 16.

The Wates Corporate Governance Principles for Large Private Companies provides a framework for the Group to not only
demonstrate how the Board makes decisions for the long-term.suceess of the Company and iis stnkeholders (sec Principle 6—
Stakcholders, of the Corporate Governance Report within these Financial Statements), but also having regard to how the Board
ensures the Group complies with the requircments of scction 172 of the Companies Act 2006. Our reporting against the Wates
Principles has been included on pages 13 to 18,

We set nut below an example of how we have had regard to the matters set out in section 172(1)(a)-(f) when discharging our
scction 172 duty afid the effcct of that on decisions taken by us:

Throughout 2022, the Board will continue to réview and challenge how the Group can improve cngagement with its employees
and stakcholders.

On behalf of the board:

C'K K Gungotra - Diredlgf

Date: |5th July 2022
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Statement of Corporate Governance arrangements

For the year ended 31st December 2021, under The Compames (Miscellaneous Reporting) Regulations 2018, the UK Group
has applied the Wates Corporate Govemzmce Principles for Large Private Companics (published by the Financial Reporting
Council ('FRC’) in December 2019 and available on the FRC website).

The disclosures below explain how the Group has applied these principles in the context of its corporate governance
arrangements.

Principle | ~ Purpose and Leadership

As one of the UK's leading contractors, Skanska is an inclusive and responsible business that is helping to build for a betier
society. Known formajor projects across the country, we are building, upgrading and maintaining the coubtry's infrastructure.

Drawing on our Scandinavian heritage, we are green, innovative and values-drivén. We bring togcther people and technology,
ds part of diir quest to make construction a safer and more collaborative industry.

Purpose

The Group's purposé and mission is to build for a betier society. What we do and how we do it contributés to a sustainable.
future for our people, our customers and for the communities in which we operate. We deliver our purpose through our great
variety of projccts and innovative, sustainable solutions. It is about what we do as well as how we do it ' We aim to lead in
health ahd safety, ethics, green, inclusion and diversity and community investment - our Sustainability aréas — and we do that
through our commitment, passion, and cxpertise. This creates greater shared value for our people, for society and for Skanska.

Values and Culture

The Group's four core values are: care for life, act cthically & transparently, be beticr - together and commit 10 cusiomers.
Our values express our moral foundations and compass. They express who we are, how we béhave and what we believe i in,
and help us in our day-to-day work. Values provide business benefits (page 4) and living our values will make us successful.
Actions thitt dre not in lin¢ with, or may jeopardise, our values are not accepied.

We strive to create value for our sharéholders and to have a positive impact on society. We don’t believe it is about doing one
ar the other; it is about doing both al the same time. Profit is needed to deliver on purpose and a strong purpose will contribute
to profit. Every project should both be profitablc and delivered in line with the Skanska valucs and our ambilion to be a leader
‘within Sustainability. The Group’s operations consist of construction and related activities. Operating units within several
streams collaborate in various ways, creating operational and financial syncrgies that gencrate increased value.

The Skanska Code of Conduct defings how all Skanska employees should wark. The aim of the Code is to pravide clear
direction for cveryday bebaviour, helping us to live our values and maintain our position as a safe, ¢thical and sistainable
business. Our aim'is to ensure all projects reflect 6ur purpose and are not only profitable but are delivered without ethical
breaches and with a transparent and inclusive culture,

People are at the heart of our business; we aim to create an inclusive culture with an environment where employces can be
themselves and be the best they can be. We offer our cmployees opportunities to develop and Iéarn, The Group sets a culiure
bascd on transparency, values and high perforinance, with employees working together towards common goals. This culiure
is embedded through senior management ‘engagement, performance reviews, reward stnictures, as well as training and
indiction. We monitor the effectiveness of this culture and communication through staff surveys, cxit interviews and fecdback
sessions with Directors.

Strategy

Tn the fisst half of 2022, the Group entered its next plan cycle and launched Business Plan 2024 across the business. At-the
core of the new Business Plan remains Skanska's long-term purpose and valies. The new plan follows a market penetration
strategy, aiming to increase our share 6f work in our most successful sectors and grow revenues with existinig cusioméis. Along
with a challenging set of financial tarpels, the outcome of Business Plan 2024 .is to make progress against our ambition to
‘become the most réspected construction company in the UK.

13
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Strategic objectives
The first stage of the Laser Focus Plan (page 4) focused on strategic objectives in five key areas:

Right peaple— Making sure we use objective, performance-based information bascd on evidence when we appoint people to
key projéct positions. This is strategically lmportam betause people in ihese pivotal roles take values-driven decisions which
significantly affect the successful delivery of projccts. The key objective is to collect factual information about our projects
and cmployees performance and thén making sure we use it to drive a successful, diverse and collaborative team enabling the
best opportunity to achieve profit with purpose.

Design control - Design control covers cverything aboul how we asscss, manage and deal with project design. This is critically
impartant for the success of our projects and has a significant impact on our clicnis and our proﬁtabxhty We have recognised
that carly collabordtion with our partners on.design in an dpen but controlled environment gives the best. chance of success.
This relates to all parts of a project from tender and procuremcnt through to delivery and handover.

Understanding and applying the-deal - This is about knowing the contract, acting on that knowledge and recognising the
commercial impact it has an our staké¢holders as well as upon ourselves. A collaborative, no surprises environment is the goal
ensuring-all parties are able to achicve their objectives, be they financial or operational.

Quality — We recognise that the cost of “lack of quality” is a burden to any construction business through the subsequedt
rework of design and delivery, Therefore, this objective is about ensuring a *‘right first ime” mentality is driven through all
arcas of the Business. Using recognised and professional techniques through to sharing best practice and empowering our
cmployccs 1o innovate is at the heart of the objective. A clear and realistic plan that can be actioned and measured is key to
each part of any project.

Forecasting and reporting - It is fundamental that reporting needs to be accurate, transparent and consistent across the Groip.
This also alléws for more accurdte forecasting, empowering the BU to be able to understand the opportunities available to it
and the challenges it faces. The rollout of new project valuation systems alongside training and support for Project tcams has
been vital in achieving this objective.

By focusing on the strategic objectives in these key areas in the short-term increases profitability and in the long-term increases
stakehalder value and sustainability. These are monitored through margins achieved on projects as well as employce appraisals
and customer surveys.

In order for the Laser Focus Plan to be successful we need to: base our decisions on fact and realism; scrutinise effectively;
learn from success and failure; address under performance and do what we say we would do. At their core is the Skanska
culture —values driven, open and transparent, striving to be better - together. This in turn helps to advance the Group's purposc
of building for a better society.

Principle 2 — Board Composition

The board is made up of the Exccutive Management Teamn (EMT) which is led by UK President and CEO, Gregor Craig,
supported by six Executive Vice Presidenis. The board comprises a balance of skills, bnckgrounds experience and knowledge
with each ‘individual making a valuable contribution. The average tenure of the board is six years.

The EMT is responsible for setting the strategic direction, values, cthics and purpose across the Group:

The size of the board is considered sufficient for the strategic needs and challenges faced by the organisation and enables
effective decision making. The board is évaluated on a regular basis by its ultimate parent company Skanska AB.

Principle 3 — Directors’ Responsibilities
Accountability

Each board member has 4 clear understanding of their responsibility and.accountability. The corporate governance framework
cnsures that Skanska is managed sustainably, responsibly and cfficiently on behalf of all stakcholders. The purpose of corporate
governance is also to ensure oversight of the Group by the EMT and management. By having 2 clearly defined govermance
structure as well as proper policies and pracedures, the board can ensure that management and employees arc focused on
developing the busincss and thereby getierating shareholder value and having a positive impact on society.

The board usually meets twice a month as an executive tcam and additionally as required.
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The EMT delegates authority for day-to-day management of the Group to the Senior Management Team (SMT), which it has
oversight of, made up of individuals with the appropriate knowledge, qualifications and industry experience to carry ott their
roles. The SMT comprisés of membcrs who are responsible for specific operations and ‘functions to enable cffective and
efficient decision making: The Group has a dclegation of authority policy which clearly details what decisions can be delegated.
and to whom, including any finangial limits. In some instances, Skanska HQ approval is also required above the EMT levels
of authority.

Integrity of information

The EMT receives regular and timely information on all key aspects of the business including Susiainability, health and safety,
opportunities, risks, financial performance, strategy, operations, order bookings and other key performance indicators.

Information is reported from the Group's operational, commercial and accounting systems. The employces involved are
appropriately qualified 1o ensure the integrity of this information and are provided with the necessary training to keep up to
date with any regulatory changes. Financial confrols are regularly and routinely reviewed by the ultimate parent company’s
internal audit functon.

Principle 4 — Opportunity and Risk

The EMT aims to promote the long-term sustainable success of the Group by identifying opportunities to create and preserve
value and establishing oversight for the identification and mitigation of risks.

Opportunity

For our construction operations, several factors have a significant bearing on the eventual outcome of the project, including -
type and size, where it is located, how the contract and delivery approach are structured and the relationship with the customer,
The Group has procedures and tools to manage risk and to deliver the Group’s business plan. This platform provides a struc-
turcd and cfficient means of maximising profitability and achieving the business plan. Tt builds on the Group’s fundamentals
of focusing on core projcct types and the undersianding of its customers and markets.

As part of our Laser Focus Plan, the goal is that cvery project must hit or beat tender margin, delivering an operating margin
of 3% or greater. Theic are five work strcams which have been prioritised as they will have most impact on improving our
financia! performance: the right people; design control; understanding and applying the deal; quality; forccasting and rcporting,.

We only bid on projects in arcas which we have a proven track record of success and which delivers a 3% or greater operating
margin. n order to identify these projccts, we continuously monitor sectors we currently operate in from both a financial and.
performance perspective whilst also asscssing the potential future opportunities. Fromn time to time this evaluation protocol is
also extended to newly-emerging sectors. Combining these clemenis together has given us a good understanding of the projects
we should bid for. Tt is not just, however, about what we do, but alse how we do it. To make the Laser Focus Plan a success
we aim to: base our decisions on fact and rcalism; scrutinise effectively; learn from success and failurc; address
underperformance; and do what we say we will do.

As part of this, the ‘Quality of Scrutiny’ programme was introduced, an initiative undertaken by the Group to further enhance
our abilitics in scrutinising and managing projects. In order 1o improve our performance and achieve a high level of aperational
stability, we scrutinisc and revisit continuously how we work with the cstimating, planning, project exccution, bid selection,
risk assessmeni, administrative and support functions.

Risk

The way in which risk management is dealt with across the Group is sct out in the Skanska Group Enterprise Risk Management
Information Policy. The enterprise risks are classified in four categorics: strategic; operational; financial; and regulatory, The
Group’s approach to risk is governed by Skanska AB, the ultimate parent company, who have identified the material rsks in
its operations that may, if not managed correctly, lead to errors in financial reporting and/or have an irapact on the Company's
performance results, Skanska AB's Group Leadership Team and its core functions are responsible for managing general risks
relating to strategy, macracconomics and regulatory frameworks, while the main tasks relating to operational risks and
opponiunitics arc carried out 4t the local level within its individual business units

The UK is required to carry out a business-wide enterprise risk asscssment every two ycars, with the asscssment being formally
monitored by the ultimate parent in the interim year. This enables the board to monitor and assess risks at a local level and
consider whether these are in line with the ultimatc parent company’s assessed risks at a global level. The last review was
carried out during 2021 and a new proccss of reviewing and, if necessary, updating risks on a quarterly basis was adopted. The
principal risks for the Group are set out within the Strategic Report (page 2).
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Responsibilities

The EMT has established an internal control framework with clearly defined roles and responsibilities for those involved. The
Skanska UK policies, procedures and guidelines provide the basic rules and instructions to provide & clear structure for the

business opecrations and.they represent current best practice.

Principle 5 — Remuneration

At Skanska, a high-performance culture supported by appropriate remuncration and an award-winning employec development
programme is critical to the delivery of individual and business objcctives. This culture is driven by the alignment of ¢lcar and
challenging responsibilitics and ensuring that employees are aware of how their work impacts the Group.

Skanska stands by the principle of “equal pay for ¢qual work™. Accordingly, decisions relating to remuneration are never
influenced by discriminatory factors. Furthermore, Skanska adopts the Grandparent Principle for any remuneration decisions.
To ensure fair and objective remuneration, approval is required from the line manager and the linc manager’s manager.

The remuneration of the CEQ is approved by the Skanska AB compensation committee, and external benchmarks are used in
the seiting of this. Remuneration of board members is approved by the CEO of Skanska AB in line with the requircments of
the Skanska AB Compensation Commitice.

The annual bonus plan for the CEO and other board members is based on two factors: profitability; and performance against
a small number of stratcgic measures. Targets for both arcas are set annually. The annual strategic measures are aligned with
the three arcas of the "Profit with Purpose” initiative — Great Pcople, Operational Excellence, and Market Making.

Principle 6 — Stakeholder Relationships and Engagement

The EMT is clear that good governance and effective communication are critical to the Group's success. These factors enable
us to deliver our purpose within our communities, and to protect the Group’s brand, reputation and rclationships with our
stakeholders and ultimate parent, Skanska AB.

Our Communities

The Group is committed to providing a sustainable future for its people, customers and communities. The Group's work makes
a clear contribution to society and the environment. We are committed to supporting the communitics in which we operatc,
and through our structured approach to community investment we provide our time, skills and gifts in kind to leave a positive
legacy wherever we work. Our focus is on strengthening local economics and championing education in our arcas of expertise.
We believe this is where we can have the greatest influence, and it directly supports our purpose to build for a better socicty.

Our projects may last for several years in construction and are designed to last for many years after that. We are commiited to
maintaining and improving the cnvironment on our sites and in surrounding areas. We have a tecam of more than 70
environmental professionals who provide advice and support to our business and projects. This includes delivering on legal
compliance, helping our customers to mect their own green ambitions and delivering environmental management that goes
above and beyond statutory requirements, including our plan to aperate with net-zero carbon emissions by 2045.

Stakeholder Relationships and Engagement

The EMT promotes accountability and transparency with its internal and external stakcholders. An open and ongoing dialoguc
with stakeholders is a key component in day-to-day operations and long-term planning, This provides important iasights
regarding their nceds, expectations and challenges.

The EMT continues fo seek to align the Group’s strategic direction with its purposc to build for a beticr society as well as
Skanska's long-term sustainability goals of being a responsible business leader. in health and safety, ethics, green, inclusion
and diversity and community investment, focussing on scaling up climate solutions, and developing all our projecis to ensure
a high level of resilience: The EMT are the primary communicators between the Group and its ultimate parent company.

One of the Group’s core values is Commit to Customers. By betier understanding our customers’ nccds, we aim to provide
innovative and industry-leading solutions. Relationships with our customers are most praoductive when we are involved in
project planning at an early stage. This allows us to cstablish and work together towards common aims and provides the best
environment for us to add valuc for them and for their stakeholders. We work on o variety of contracts including those in joint
ventures, on frameworks and in partnerships, depending on the project requirements and the customer. The EMT has sct the
foundations for an initiative to become better engaged and connccted with customers. This includes “Customer Insights and
Measurement” which is a structured customer satisfuction measurement programme using Nei Promoter Score.

During the year the EMT receives updates on key customers including any current or potential issues. Each member of EMT
will meet regularly with customers as being visible, open and collaborative is key (o our success. Whether it is sharing best
practice, discussing success on a project or resolving challenges, the success of this engagement cannot be underestimated.
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Each member is also a direct contribuior to professional bodies and associations that shape and give thought leadership to our
industry. This inieraction aims to keep the Group at the forcfront of innovation, forward-thinking debate and collaboration
with all stakeholders. The impact of this engagement can be seen from policy change through to challenging the mindsets
about menial health within the industry.

The Group works closcly with our supply chain partners who are essential to our success. The EMT aims to build collaborative
relatianships to develop solutions that will drive down costs, manage risk and improve sustainability standards, The EMT have
implemented. a. structured relationship management and development programme, which includes the 1SO44001 standard. In
the wider industry, the Group is collaborating with the other main coniraciors in order to help deliver the UK govemment's
Construction 2025 strategy targets — 33% lower costs, 50% faster build and 50% lower emissions — as well as to support the
award-winning Supply Chain Sustainability School. The School now has over 70,000 registered uscrs from across the supply
chain who can improve their skills in sustainability competence.

The majority of the Group’s spend is with small- and medium-sized businesses, which are oflen close to its project sites and
offices — helping to support local people and the econamy. The EMT is committed to applying feir and transparent payment
terms for its supply chain, supporting the national Construction Supply Chain Paymcot Charter and Prompt Payment Code,
which demonstrates its commitment to fair payment. The EMT strongly belicves that fair and transparent on-time payment is
essential to good supply chain partner relationships and the delivery of successful projects. Tn addition to this, the Group
supports several arcas of its supply chain to undertake research and development.

The Group is committed to managing the wider social, environmental, and economic impacts of its operations which includes
the way it engages and builds relationships with its customers and manages sustainability. The EMT is committed to protecting
the environment and making a positive contribution to a more sustainable world through improving the environmental
performance of all our products and services, and actively working to minimise our impact on climate change. The EMT has
set Skanska UK’s aim to be the leading green contractor and we continue to make progress against our target to operate with
net-zero grecnhouse gas emissions by 2045, and deliver against our oveiall environmental business plan.

Investment in. people is a priority for the Group, offering employees (including contractors) the opportunity to develop and
learn, cither within their current role or in onc of the cross-Skanska schemes to build networks and improve collaboration. The
EMT engages with employees in a number of ways throughout the year including recruitment and on-boarding piatforms,
Company-wide conferences, roadshows, development programmes and local communication events. During COVID-19 board
and cmployee engagement was retained through several channels including online meetings, wellbeing surveys and live
Company-widc updates including Q&A sessions with the CEO.

Over the past few years, the EMT has taken steps to improve employec relations by launching more interactive mectings,
improving financial, commercial and operational systems, expanding the range of employee benefits, encouraging more
flexible working practices and supporting wellbeing initiatives. An employee engagement survey, ‘Your Voice, Our Success’
(YVOS), is carried out annusily to provide every cmployce with the opportunity to give inpul to improve Skanska and enable
an approach for understanding strenpgths and development areas. The EMT treats the results of the YVOS survey as an
important indicator of the workforce’s confidence in the Group’s strategic direction. Specific feedback is requested on how
employees belicve the EMT arc performing and whether they are trustworthy and capable at leading the Business. Once again,
the results of this survey in 2021 demonstrated a high level of trust and belief in the EMT.

Skanska's Code of Conduct connccts all parts of the Group with Skanska’s values, strengthening the busiacss. The Code of
Conduct defines how all Skanska employees should work and interact with each other, customers and other stakehotders. New
employces are required to complete Code of Conduct training on or before their first day at Skanska, with a mandatory refresher
course for all employces at two-year intervals. Skanska employees arc cxpected to take action, without fear of recourse, if they
believe that there has been a serious breach to the Code, for cxample, fraud, theft, bullying or health & safety violations. A
number of methods are available for any employce o raise any potential concerns, including anonymously via Skanska's Code
of Conduct hotline. Reports are investigated by the Ethics Commitice and summaries are published intcrnally for all employces
to read.

The Group communicates regularly with the Trustecs of its various defined benefit pension schemes, who are independent of
the Group. The Board of Trustees comprises individuals nominated by the pension scheme members and by the Group. These
relationships are key to cnsuring that the decisions made by both the Group and the scheme reflect the interest of all
stakeholders.

The Company’s website (www.skanska.co.uk), intranet and social media channels providc extensive and up-to-date news on
recent developments.
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Principal declsion-making

The Gféup recogpises the importance of cngaging with stakeholders to help inform stmtcgy and EMT decision-making,
Relevani siskeholder interests; including those of cmployccs suppliers, customers -and other §takeholders, are taken into

“account by the EMT when decisions are' made. li making these decisions, the EMT considers the oulcorfics of relevant
stakeholdér engagement as well a5 the need. to maintain reputation and shareholder value.

On behalf of the board:

C K 4 Gang,utm - Director

Datc:  15th July 2022
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The Directors present their report with the finencial statements of the Company and the Group for the year ended
31st December 2021,

This Direclors' report should be read in conjunction with the Group Strategic Report, which shall be deemed to form part of
this Directors' Report to the extent required by applicable law and regulations.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Group in the year under review was that of a construction services business with core activities in
construction, civil engincering, utilities, piling and ground enginccring, design, mechanical and clectrical works and hard and
soft facilitics management. Our business model is to integrate our core disciplines to deliver project solutions across our chosen
market sectors.

Dividends

Aun interim dividend in-specie of £16.1 million (0.4878p pér share) in respect of the year ended 31st December 2021 was
distributed 10 the ordinary shareholder on 26th November 2021. This in tumn provided distributable reserves for dividend
payments from the Company’s immediate UK parent, Skanska Construction Foldings UK Limited, to Skanska Europe AB for
the financial year ended 31st December 2021,

Future developments

The Group will continue to focus on its new business plan in the year which will sct out our dircction for the next several years
as well as continuing lo focus on mitigation plans in respect of Brexit and the Ukraine crisis.

Directors
The Directors who have held office during the period from 1st January 202] to the date of this report are:

H ] Francis

G L Craig

C K K Gangotra

T P Faulkner

‘™M G Neeson

K M Dowding

S Paul {(Appointed 6th April 2021)

Dircctors' interests and transactions with Directors

None of the Directors as at 315t December 2021 had any intcrests required to be disclosed under Section 182 Companies Act
2006. There were no changes in the Directors' interests between 31st December 2021 and the date of approving this report.
No Director during the year had an interest in any contract significant to the Group's business.

Statement of corporate governance arrangements

From the 1st January 2018, under The Companies (Miscellancous Reporting) Regulations 2018, the UK Group has applicd
the Wates Corporate Governance Principles for Large Privaic Companies (published by the Financial Reporting Council
(‘FRC’) in Dccember 201R and available on the FRC website). They embrace the Group's existing governance framework,
which already contained many of the principles to satisfy the new legislative requircments.

The Corporatc Governance Report approved by the Board is provided on pages 13 to 18.

Policy on payment of creditors

The Company and its subsidiary undertakings are responsible for agrecing the terms and conditions under which business
transactions with their supplicrs are conducted. Itis Company policy that payments to supplicrs are made in accordance with

these terms, provided that the supplier is also complying with all relevant terms and conditions. The Group's trade creditors at
31st December 2021 represented 6.9 days' purchases (2020: 5.7 days).
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Research and Development

Innovation is important to enable Skanska to retain n leading market position, enabling the Group to provide the soluiions
needed by customers, nos and well into the future. Through innovation, Skanska identifies, develops and apply new technical
products, services, and processes, increasingly working with external partners. This focus — part of the 2024 business plan’s
Digital produciivity aspect — generates enhanced value for Skanska's sharcholders and customers. Various internal networks
and communications platforms facilitate sharing knowledge across the Group.

Research and development priority areas include Sustainability —including green and health and safety — and digitalisation.
Going concern

The Company’s Dircctors have considered the preparation of these financial statements under the 'going concem' basis. They
have considercd:

- The quality, remaining duration and volume of construction contracts held;

- The liquidity levels maintained by the business;

- The principal risks and uncertaintics outlined in the Group Strategic Report;

- The future forccasts for the Group.

In addition; we continue to assess the continuing impact of Brexit and the emerging impact of the Ukraine crisis on the business
through additional stress testing of the Group’s budgets and forecasts. The stress testing has considered the Group’s operational
performance and cash flow based on 2 number of scenarios in accordance with thé impacts on the wider cconomy, our clients
markets and supply chain, looking at both the short to medium-term. The outcome of which shows that the Group is expected
to mainiain positive cash flows giving the Group the ability to continue to operate for the foreseeable futurc,

After considering thc above poinis and making enquiries, the Direclors have a rcasonable expeciation that thie Group has
adeguate resources to continuc in operational existence for the period from the date of signing these financial statements to
31st December 2023. Accordingly, they dcem it appropridte to continue to prepare these financial stalements on the going
concern basis.

Employment policies

The Diréctors rccognisc that employees arc fundamental to the Group’s success and are commitied to the involvement and
development of cmployces at all levels. The Company is committed to a policy of providing cqual opportunitics for all,
regardléss of race, religion, sex ar disability. The Company is committed to training and management development, so as io
cnsure a supply of trained end skitled employces.

To.reflect society at large, the areas in which the Company works, and its customer profile, the Company nceds to increase the
diversity of its workforce in terms of educational and occuputional background, gender and cthnicity. Therefore, the Company
is broadening its recruitment base by attaching greater importance to these issues. Examples of our approach in this area
include the establishment of a number of employee networks to give a greater voice to under-represented Groups, a mixed pair
mentoring programme, and a Returners programme which provides 4 supportive bridge back info employment for people who
have been out of the work arena for reasons such as caring responsibilities or raising a family.

The Company places considerable value on the involvement of its employces and has continued its previous practice of keeping
them informed on matters affecting them as employees and on the various factors affecting the performance of the Company
and the Skanska Group. This is achicved through formal and informal meetings and in-house publications.

The Directors ensure that employecs or their representatives are consulted regularly on a wide range of matters affecting their
current and future interests.

Environment

The Company and its subsidiary undertakings are required to pursue policies that comply with the relevant legislation and
standards applicable to their particular industries.

The Group’s Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting can be found within the Strategic Repoti on page 7.

Disabled employces

Applications for employment by disabled persons are always fully considcred, bearing in mind the aptitudes of the applicant
concemed. In the event of members of staff becoming disabled every effort is made to ensure ihat their employment with the

Group continues and that appropriate training is arranged. It is the policy of ihe Group that the training, career development
and promotion of disabled persons should, as far as possible, be identical with that of other employces.
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Pensions

On anTAS 19 basis, thé Group's defined benefit pension schemes had a surplus of £54.0 million at 3 1st Decembier 2021 (2020:
deficit of £31.3 ‘million).

Total contributions paid into the main Skanska Pension Fund by the Group was £15.0 million (2020: £14.5 million).
Directors' indemnity provisions

In accordance with the Companies (Audit, Investigations and Commiunity Enterprisc) Act 2004, as at the date of this report,
the articles of association contained provisions for third-party qualifying indemnities where the Group has agreed to indemnify
the Dircctors .in respect of losses arising out of, or in, conncction with, the execution. of their duties and responsibilitics as
Directors of the Company, and this was in force throughout the financial year ended 3 1st December 2021,

Post balance sheet events

There have been no post balance shect cvents that require disclosure or adjustment in these financial statements.

Disclosure of informatien to auditor

So far as each person who was a Director at the date of approving this report is aware, there is no relevant audit information,
being information needed by the auditor in connéction-with preparing its report, of which the suditor is unaware. Having made
enquiries of fellow Dircctors and the Group's auditor, each Director has taken all the steps ihat he/she is obliged to take as a

Director in ofder to make himself/herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of
‘that informaiion.

Auditors
In accordance with Scction 489 of the Companies Act 2006, the nuditors, Emst & Young LLP, will be proposed for re-

‘appoiniment at the following Annual General Meeting,

On behalf of the board:

_3‘-1‘—"3‘:-"'

CK K Gangolra - Ditéctor

Date:  15th July 2022
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The Directors are responsible for preparing the Group Strategic Report, Dircciors' Report and the financial staiements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare finnncial siatements for each financial year. Under that law the Directors have
elected fo prepare the financial statements in accordance with Interational Financial Reporting Standards in conformity with
the requircments of the Companies Act 2006. Under Company law, the Directors must not approve the financial statements
unless they are satisfied that they give a truc and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group and of the
profit or loss ofthe Group forthat period. In preparing those financial siatemenis, the Dicectors are required to:

- select suitable accounting policies in accordance with 1AS 8 "Accounting Policics, Changes in Accounting Estimales and
Errors” and then apply them consistently;

- state whether applicable TFRS, in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, have been followed,
subject to any material departures, disclosed and explained in the financial staicments;

- make judgemenis-and accounting cstimates that arc reasonable and prudent; and

- prepare the financial statemenis on the going concem basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group and
Company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and cxplain the Company
and the Group's transactions and disclose with rcasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and the
Group and enable them to ensure that the financial stateménis comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the preyention and
detection of fraud.and other irregularities.
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Opinion

‘We have audiied the financisl statements of Skanska UK Pic (‘the parcat company®) and its subsidiarics (the ‘group’) for the
year ended 31 December 2021 which comprise the Group Profit and Loss Account, the Group and Parcnt campany Balance
Sheet, Group and Parent company statement of cash flows, the Group statement of comprehensive income, the Group and
Parent staiement of changes in equity and the related notes 1 to 35, including a summary of significant uccounting policies.
The financisl reporting framework that has'been applied in their preparation is applicable law and UK adopted International
Accaunting Standards and as regards the parent company financial statements, as applicd in accordance with section 408 of
the Companies Act 2006.

In our apinion:

. the financial statements give a truc and fair view of the group's and of the parent company’s affairs as at 31
December 2021 and of the group's profit for the year then ended;

e  the group financial siatcments have been properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted International
Accounting Standards;

. the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted International
Accounting Standards as applied in accordance with section 408 of the Companies Act 2006; and

. the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Qur
responsibilities undcr those standards ar¢ further described in the Auditor’s responsibilitics for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We arc independent of the group in accordance with ihe ethical requiremenis that are relevant
to our auditof the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard , and we have fulfilled our other cthical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statcments, we have concluded that the dircctors’ use of the going concemn basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. Our cvaluation of the directors’ assessment of the group and parent
company'’s ability to continuc to adopt the going concern basis of accounting included:

e  We assessed the risk around going concern in planning our audit and again at the year-cnd phase;

s Wc confirmed our understanding of the process followed by management to prepare the Group’s going concern
assessment, including assessing the inflution and supply chain impact of the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic and the
conflict in Ukraine;

e Wec obtained management’s going concern assessment, including the cash flow forecast for the going concern period
to 31 December 2023;

e  We identified and challenged the key assumpiions underlying management’s forccasts and models by checking to
corroborative evidence. We also searched for contrary evidence to challenge the assumptions;

o We performed our own sensitivity analysis on the forecast in addition to sensitivity analysis performed by
management;

e We performed reverse stress testing on the forecast preparcd by management;

e We checked the logic and arithmetical accuracy of the models developed by management;

*  We assessed the sccuracy of management forecasting by comparing forccasts made in prior periods to actual
outcomes;

e  We obtained a copy of the Group’s order bookings and performed an assessment over the secured revenue; and

»  We assessed the accuracy and appropriateness of management’s disclosure in the Director’s Report and the Going
Concern basis of preparation note.

Bascd on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that,
individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on. the group and parent company’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a period from when the financial statements arc authorised for issue to 31 December 2023,

Our responsibilitics and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections
of this report. However, because not all futurc events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guaranteé as to the
group's ability to continue as a going concern.
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Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information. and, except to the cxtent othenwise explicitly
stated in this report, we do not express any form of dssurance conclusion thereon,

Our responsibility is to rcad the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. [f we identify such material inconsistencics or apparent material misstatements, we are required to
determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a matcrial misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

e the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financiat
statements arc prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
»  the strategic report and directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its environment obtained in the
coursc of the audit, we have not identified matcrial misstatements in the strategic report or directors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the followirig matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report
to you if, in our opinion:
e adcquale accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audii have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or
»  the parcnt company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
»  certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration spcciﬁéd by law are not mude; or
» wec have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement set out an x, the directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a truc and fair view, and for such intemal control as the
directors defermine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statcments that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or crvor.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors arc responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the dircctors cither intend to liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain rcasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatément, whether due to fraud or crror, and to issuc an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatemeants can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregatc, they could rcasonably be cxpected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

24



Report of the Independent Auditors to the Members of Skanska UK Plc

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irvegularities, including fraud

Trregularitics, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with
our responsibilities, outlined above, to deteci irregularities, including fraud. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve dcliberate concealment by,
for example, forgery or intentional misreprescntations, or through collusion. The extent to which our procedures are capable
of detecting irregularities, including froud is detailed below. However, the primary responsibility for the prevention and
detection of fraud rests with both those charged with governance of the entity and management.

¢  Wc obtained. an undersianding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that arc applicable to the company and
determined that the most significant are the Companies Act 2006, Bribery Act 2010, Construction (Design and
Management) Regulations 2015 and the relevant tax regulations in the United Kingdom,

e We understood how Skanska UK Plc is complying with those frameworks through inquiry with management, and
by identifying the Group’s policies and procedures regarding compliance with laws and regulations. We corroborated
our inquiries through our review of board minutes, compliance issues reported through a whistleblowing hotline and
corrcspondence received from regulatory bodics.

e Weassessed the susceptibility of the Company’s financial statcments to material misstatement, including how fraud
might occur. through inquiry with. management (including legal) and those charged with govemance to understand
where they considered there was susceptibility to fraud. As part of this we understoad the performance targets of
management. We also considered the risk of management override.

e  Based on this understanding we designed our audit procedures to identify noncompliance with such laws and
regulations. Qur procedurcs involved testing manual journal eniries and other journals identified by specific risk
criteria, review of board minuies and any legal correspondence, inquirics with scnior management and where
applicable, those charged with governance and obtaining written representations (rom the directors of the company.

A further description of our responsibilitics for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting
Council's website at https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in. accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companics
Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matiers we are required
to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitied by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

y Lep
David Wilson (Senior siatutory audiior)
for and on behalf of Emst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
London

15th July 2022
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For The Year Ended 315t December 2021

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other operating incémt

Administrative expenses

Operating profit
Finance costs

Finance incomg

Profit béfore tax

Income igx

Profit aftér tax for the year from continuing operations
Profit after tax for the year:from discontinued opcrations
Profit for the year

Prafit attributable to:
Owners of the parént

Nates 2021 2020
£'000 £000
4 1,122,698 1,122,278
(1,005,754) . (1,042;310)
116,944 79,968
5 302 4,018
(83,538) (71,810)
33,708 12,176
7 {2,022) (2;476)
7 3,060 3,333
34,746 13,033
9 (10,760) (855)
23986 12,178
10 31,552 8,181
55,538 20,359
55,538 20,359

The notcs on pages 34 to 73 form part of these financial statements
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Profit for the-year |

Other comprchensive income )
Items that may not be reclassified subsequently to prdfit or loss;
Net actuarial gain/(ldss) on pension scheme

Employees sharc scheme _

Currént tax credit relating fo items of oiher comprehensive Income
Déferred tax charge relating to itenis of dilier comprehensive Income

Iterns that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
‘Exchange difference

QOtheér comprehensive iucome/(lpss_) for the year, net of income tax
"Total comprehensive incorie for-the year

Tatal comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the parent

2021 2020
£000 £'000°
55,538 20,359
72,007 (5,592)
2,490 21713
3,388 2,338
. (21,416, (1,276)
56,469 T (35T
(1,402) 1,077
{1,402) 1,077
55,067 . (1,280).
110,605 19,079
110,605 19,079.

The:notes on pages 341073 form part of these financial staterents
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Skanska UK Plc (Registered number: 00784752)

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
For The Year Ended 31st December 2021

2021 2020
Notes £000 £2000
Assets
Non-current assets ‘
Intangible assets 12 9,634 6,830
Property, plant and equipment 13 19,989 20,574
Right-of-use assets 14 44,661 45,526
Investments 15 3,937 3,937
Pension asset 28 53,981 -
Deferred tax. 27 9,293 . 16,019
141,495 92,886
Current assets ]
Inventories 16 4,573 4,667
Trade and other receivables 17 165,738 145,691
Coantract assets 18 83,534 85,433
Cash and cash cquivalents 19 519,650 422,385
773,495 658,176
Assets held for sale 10 - 54,725,
773,495 712,901
Total Assets 914,990 805,787
Equity
Shareholder’s equity
Called up share capital 20 165,000 165,000
Retaincd eamings 21 197,682 103,177
"Fotul equity 362,682 268,177
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities )
Leasc liabilities 24 50,434 53,069
Pension liability 28 - 31,331
Deferred tax 27 13,496 2,556
Provisions 26 98,808 82,826
162,738 169,782
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 22 285,188 218,468
Contract liabilities 23 85,354 88,065
Tax payable ) 8,166 199
‘Lease liabilities 24 10,862 10,278
) 389,570 317,010
Liabilitics directly associated with. the assets held for sale 10 - 50.818
389,570 367,828
Total liabilities 552,308 537,610
Total equity and liabilitics 914,990 805,787

The financial slatcments were approved by the Board of Ditcctors on 15th July 2022 and were signed on its behalf by:

The notes on pages 34 10 73 form part of these financial statements
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Skanska UK Plc (Registered number: 00784752)

Company Statement of Financial Position
For The Year Ended 31st December 2021

Assets

Non-current assets
Intangible asséts

Propeérty, plant and équipment
Right-of-usc assets
Investments

Pension asset

Deferred tax

Current assets

Trade and other receivables
Contract assets

Tax receivable

Cash and cash cquivalents

Assets held for sale

Total Assets

Equity . .
Sharcholder’s equity
Called up share capital
Retained carnings

Total equity

Liabilities
Non-current linbilitics
Lense liabilities
Pension liability
Deferred tax

Current liabilitics
Trade and other payables
Contract ligbilitics
Lease linbilities

‘Bank overdmafi

Liabilities directly associated with the.assets held for sale

Tatal linbilities

Totul equity and liabilities

20

24

27

22

24

10

2021 2020
£2000 £:000
9,634 6,830
6,457 6,289
43,380 41,953,
48,898 49,238
54,874 -
_ 2,576 8,346
165,819 112,656
259,490 246,449
32,788 27,211
14,176 4,182
- 2,839
306,454 280,681
- 15,954
306,454 296,635
472,273 409,291
165,000 165,000
82,604 16,170
247,604 181,170
48395 48,690
- 28,115
13,718 -
62,013 76,805
138,594 127,621
- 1,286

7,359 6,174
16,603 . -
162,556 135,081
- 16,235

_ 162,556 151,316
224,669 228,121
_ 472273 409,291

The Dircctors have taken the exemption provided by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and have not presented a profit
and loss account for the Company. The profit for the year of the Company was £27,406,000 (2020: £35,213,000)

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Dircctors on | 5th July 2022 and were signed on its behalf by:

The notes oit pages 34 to 73 form part of thesé financial statements
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Skanska UK Ple (Registered number: 00784752)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For The Yéar Ended 31st December 2021

Called up

share Retained Total

cupital earnings equity

£000 £1000 £°000

‘Balance at Lst January 2020 165,000 119,098 284,098
Profit {or the year - 20,359 20,359
Other comprehensive loss - _(1,280) (1,280)
Total comprehensive income ) - __19.079 19,079
Dividends paid - (35,000) (35,000
Balance as at 31st December 2020 165,000 iQB, 177 268,177
Profit for the ycar - 55,538 55,538
Other comprehensive income - . .55,067 57,067
Total comiprchensive income ) - __110.605 110,605
Dividends paid - (16,100) -(16,100)
Bildnce as at 31st December 2021 165,000 197,682 362,682

The notes on pages 34 to 73 form part of thése financial statcinenis
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Skiinska UK Pl¢ (Registered riumber: 00784752)

Company Statement of Changes in Equity
For The Year Ended 31st December 2021

Balance at 15t January‘zozo

Profit for ihe'year
QOther comprehensive loss

Total comprehensive income
Dividends paid
Balance as at 31st December 2020

Profit for the year
Othcr comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Dividends paid

Balance as at 31st December 2021

Called up o
share. Retained, Total équity
capital earnings, £7000
£1000 £1000
165,000 19,368 184,368
- 35213 35,213
- (3.411) (3410)
- 31,802 .31,802
- (35,000) (35.000)
165,000 16,170 181,170
27,406 27,406
- 55,128 55,128
- 82,534 82,534
(16,100) (16,100)
165,000 82,604 247,604

The notes on pages 34 1o 73 form part of these financial statements
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Skanska UK Plc (Registered number: 00784752)

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow
For. The Year Ended 31st December 2021

Notes

Cash flows from operating activitics
Cash generated from opérations 32
Tax (paid)/reccived

Net cash from operaling aciivitics

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of intangible fixed assets

Purchase of tangiblc fixed asscls

Sale of tangible fixed assets

Sale of investments

Sale of business operations 10
Interest received

Net cash from investing activitics

Cash flows from financing activities

‘Dividends paid _

Principal paid on leasc liabilities 24
Nei cash from financing activities

Increase/(decreasc) in cash and cash cquivalents
Cash and cash équivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash cquivalents at end of year

2021 2020
£000 £2000
85,489 6,323

__ (8.872) 3,786
76,617 10,109
(2,804) (5,548)
(3.471) (4,483)

572 118

- 1,721

53,722 -
2,876 2,931
50,895 . __{5.261)
(16,100) (35,000)
(14,147) (21,173)

. (30,247) (56,173)
97,265 (51,325)
422,385 473,710
519,650 422,385

The notés on pages 34 to 73 form pait of these financial statements
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Skanska UK Ple (Registeréd number: 00784752)

Company Staterncnt of Cash Flow
‘For The Year Ended 31st December 2021

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash used in operations
Tax (paid)/received

Net cash used in operating activitics
Cash flows from investing activities
Dividends received

Purchase of intangible assels

Purchase of tangible fixed asséts
Intercst reccived

Net cash from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities,
Dividends paid

Principal paid on lease liabilities

Nét cash from finencing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents ot end of year-

2021 2020
Nates £000 £000
32 (24,167) (24,251)
(8.872) 3.786
(33,039) (20:465)
40,000 -
(2,804) (4,701)
(1,559) (150}
4.308 3,615
39,945 (1,236)
. (16,100) (35,000)
24 (1.0,248) (14,570)
(26,348) (49.570)
(19,442) (71;271)
2,839 74,110
_ (16,603) 2,839

Thenotes on pages 34-to 73 form part of these financial Statements.
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Skanska UK Plc (Registered number: 00784752)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 31st December 2021

1. Coerporate Statutory information

Skanska UK Plc (the “‘Company’) is a public Company, limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales.
The Company's registered number and registered office address can be found on the Company [nformation page.

The presentation currency of the financial statements is the Pound Sterling (£), the functional currency of the Group. All values
are rounded to the nearest thousand pounds (£000), unless otherwise stated.

2. Signilicant accounting policies
Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared. and approved by the Dircctors in conformity- with the requirements of the
Companics Act 2006 and under the historical cost convention and include the results of activities described in the Directors'

report.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which assumes that the Group will continue in
aperational cxistence and meet its liabilities as they fall due, for the period from the date of signing these financial statements
to 31st December 2023.

The Group has net current assets of £383.9 million and nct assets of £362.7 million. The Group meets its day to day working
capital requirements through an inter-Company UK pooling arrangement and does noi have any bank dcebt or olher external
borrowings or facilities.

The Group's financial forccasts, taking into consideration the current environment, show that the Group is expected 1o mainiain
positive cash flows giving the Group the ability to continue to operate for the foreseeable future. The Group has been able to
utilise certain government stimutus initiatives and upon several produciivity analyses preformed, the Directors do not
anticipate requesting any suppoit from its ultimate parent, Skanska AB.

In view of the circumstances referred to above, the Directors are satisfied that sufficient financial resources will be generated
by the Group for the foresecable future. Accardingly, the Directors of the Group believe that it is appropriate to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the financial statcments.

However, should sufficient posifive cash flow not be available, the going concemn basis would be invalid and djustments
would have to be made to provide for any further liabilities which might arise and to reclassify fixed assets and long-term
liabilities as current assets and liabilitics.

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to prepare s profit and
loss account as the Company’s results are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss shown on page 26.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial siatements of the Company and its subsidiaries (together the-
‘Groiip’) as at 31st December 2021. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those retumns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the

Group conirols an investee if, and only if, the Group has:

e Power over the investce (i.c. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee)
¢ Exposure, or rights, to varisble returns from its involvement with the investee
o  The ability {o use its power over the investee {o affect its retums

Generally, there is a presumption that 8 majority of voting rights results in control. To support this presumption and when the
Group has lcss than. a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

e  The contractual arrangement(s) with the other vote holders of the investee

e Rights arising from other contractual arrangements
e The Group's voling rights and poteniial voting rights
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Skanska UK Plc (Registered number: 00784752)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemeats
For The Year Ended 31st December 2021

2. Accounting policies - continued

The Group re-assesses whether or not it contrals an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the
subsidiary and ccases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial siatements from the date the Group gains
control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each companent of OCI are attributed to the equity holders of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling intercsts having a.deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments
arc made io the financial siatements of subsidiarics to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting
policics. All intra-Group assets and liabilities, equity, incorne, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are ¢liminated in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derccognises the related asscts (including goodwill), liabilitics, non-controlling
interest and other components of equity, while any resuliant gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Associated undertnkings and joint arrangements

A joint arrangement exists where the co-owners have rights to the assets of the arrangement and obligations for the liabilities
of the arrangement. An arrangement that is not structured through the formation of a separate Company is a joint operation.
Contracting projects performed in cooperation with outside contracting companies, with joint and several liability, are reported
by the Group as joint aperations. If the arrangement is a separatc Company but thc majority of the Company's production is
acquired by the co-owners, then the arrangement is often considered to be a joint operation. If, on the other hand, the co-
owners of the arrangement only have rights to the net asscts of the arrangement, it is a joint venture. Classification of a joint
arrangement requires consideration of its legal form, the terms agreed by the parties in the contractual arrangement and other
circumstances.

An associated undertaking is an entity over which the Group holds a participating interest on a long-term basis and exercises
significant influcnce. Interests in associated underiakings are included in the consolidated financial stalements using the equity
accounting method.

The Group has entered into 8 number of joint operations with different partaers for the purposes of undertaking specific
contracts. Inierests in joint operations arc accounted for by recognising the Group's share of income and cxpenses and asseis
and liabilities measured according to the terms of the arrangements.

Investment in subsidiaries

The Group holds investments in subsidiaries at cost less any applicable provision for impairment.

Early adoption of new or revised IFRS and interpretations

There has been no carly adoption of new or revised [FRS or interpretations.

New standards and interpretations

The following new standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the first time for periods beginning on or afler

Ist January 2022 but have not had a material cffcct on the ‘Group and so have not been discussed in detail in the notes to the
financial statements:

» Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — [BOR *phase 2' (Amendmeats to IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16); and
o Amendments to IFRS 4 — increase in temporary exemption from applying IFRS 9.
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Skanska UK Plc (Registered number: 00784752)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 315t December 2021

2. Accounting policies - continued

New standards, interpretations and amendments not yet effective

There are a number of standards, amendments to standards, and interpretations which have been issued by the IASB that are
effective in future accounting periods that the Group has decided not to adopt early. The most significant of these are as
follows:

COVID-19 related rent concessions (Amendments to 1FRS 16)/;

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to 1AS 37)};

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Usc (Amcendmcnts to LAS 16)1;

Annual Improvements to [FRS Standards 2018-2020 (Amendments to IFRS 1, [ERS 9, IFRS 16 and IAS 41)';
References to Conceptual Framework {(Amendments to [FRS 3)!;

Changes to accounting estimates and accounting polices (Amendments to IAS 1and TAS 8)?; and

Deferred Tax assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction (Amendment to 1AS 12)2

' Effective for the pediod beginning 1st January 2022
2 Effective for the period beginning st January 2023

In January 2020, the LASB issucd amcndments to IAS 1, which clarify the criteria used to determine whether Liabilities are
classified as currcnt or non-current. These amendments clarify that current or non-current classification. is based on whether
an entity has a right at the end of the reporting period to defer setilement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
rcporting period. The amendments also clarify that ‘settlement’ includes the transfer of cash, goods, services, or equity
instruments unless the obligation to transfer equity instrumcnts arises from a conversion feature classified as an cquity
instrument separately from the liability component of a compound financial instrument. The effective date of this amendment
has been deferred to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1st January 2024,

Skanska UK Ple is currently assessing the impact of these amendments to accounting siandards. The Group does not expect
any other standards issucd by the IASB, but not yet effective, to have 2 material impact on the Group.

Revenue

‘Revenuc represents the sales value of wark done on construction contracts and services activitics in the period and excludes
VAT. Profit and revenuc on construction contracts is calculated. in accordance with JFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers:

When an outcome of & construction contract can be estimated reliably, the Company’s preferred method of revenuc is the
output method in which révenue is recognised bascd on the units of work performed and the price allocated thercto. This
mcthod is applied provided that the progress of the work performed can be measured based on the contract and during the
contract’s performance. Under this output method the units of work completed under each contract are measured monthly and
the corresponding output is recognised as revenue. Where it is not practicable to apply this ‘units of production’ output method,
the ‘percentage of completion’ input method is used instead. Under this input mcthod costs are recognised as incurred and
revenue is recognised based on the proportion of total costs at the reporting date to the estimated total costs of the contract.

Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments are included to the cxtent that the amount can be measured reliably
and its receipt is considered highly probable i.e. agreed with the customer. Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot
be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the extent of contract costs incurred where it is highly probable they
will be recoverable. Coniract costs are recogniscd as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

When it is probable thai total contract costs will excecd total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense
immediately as a provision for forecast losscs.

Contract Assets and Contract Linbilities

Unlike the method used to recognise contract revenue, the amounts billed to the customer are bascd on the monthly
achievement of progress towards our performance obligation in the contract and on acknowledgement thercof by the customer;
which takes the form of a contractual document call a ‘certificate of completion® or *work order’. Thus, the amounts recognised
as revenue for a given year do not necessarily coincide with the amounts billed to or certified by the custoraer. In the case of
contracts in which goods and services transferred to the customer exceed the related amount billed or certificd, the difference
is recognised as a contract asset. Whereas in contracts in which the goods or services transferred are lower than the amount
billed to or certified by the customer, the difference is recognised as a contract liability.
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Skanska UK Plc (Registered number: 00784752)

Notes to the Cansclidated Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 31st Deccmber 2021

2. Accounting policics - continued
Government Grants

The grants are recognised in other income within profit or loss when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received, and all attached conditions will be complied with. The grants are recognised as income on a systematic basis over
the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Profit from disposal of investments
Profit on disposal of the Company’s investments is recognised when all three of the following criteria are met:

- contracts are exchanged prior to the year-end;

- conditions of the sale that need to be sausfied before legal completion are satisfied before the year-end. Any
conditions not satisficd before the year-end must be administrative in nature only; and

- full consideration from the sale must be received shortly aficr the year-end.

Pre-cantract costs

Pre-contract costs are expensed as incurred until it is victually certain that a contract will be awarded, from which time further
pre-contract costs are recognised as an assct and charged as an expense over the period of the contract. Amounts recovered in
respect of pre-contract cosis that have been written-off are deferred and amortised over the life of the contract. When financial
close is achieved on Privatc Finance Initiative (PFI) contracts and pre-contract costs are recovered, Lhose costs not previously
capitalised are credited to the profit or loss.

Cash dividend

The Company recognises a liability to pay a dividend when the distribution is authoriscd, and the distribution is no longer at
the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws of Euroland, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the
sharcholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in cquity.

Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

The Group classifies non-current assets and disposal Groups as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovercd
pringipally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. Non-current assets and disposal Groups classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Costs to scll arc the incremental
costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset (disposal Group), excluding finance costs and income tax expense.

The critcria for held for sale classification is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable, and the asset or disposal
Group is available for immediate sale in its present condition. Actions requircd to complete the sale should indicate that it is
unlikely thal significant changes to the sale will be made or that the decision to sell will be withdrawn. Management must be
committed to the plan to sell the asset and the sale expected to be completed within one ycar from the date of the classification.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible asscts are not depreciated or amortised once classified as held for salc.

A disposal Group qualifies as discontinued operation if it is a component of an entity that cither has been disposed of, or is
classificd as held for sale, and:

e Represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations;
s s part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical ares of operations; or
« Isasubsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Discontinued operations are excluded fram the results of continuing operations and are prescnted.as a separate column in the
statement of profit or loss.

Additional disclosurcs are provided in Note 10. All other noies to the financial staiements comprisc amounts for continuing
opcrations, unless indicated otherwise.

37



Skanska UK Plc (Registered number: 00784752)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 31st December 2021

2. Accounting policics - continued
Intangible asséts and goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries, representing the difference between the fair value of purchase consideration
and the fair valuc of net asscts acquired, is capifalised in the statement of financial position. Goodwill is reviewed for
impairment at least annually. Any impairment is recognised immediately in the profit or loss within administrative expenses
and is not subscquently reversed. The fair value of net assets in excess of the fair value of purchasc consideration is credited
to the incomc statement in the year of acquisition.

Impairment losses arc determined on the basis of the recoverable amount of goodwill, which is based exclusively on value in
usc, calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows generated by the asset. The discount factor is the weighted
average cost of capital applicable to the parent Company. For goodwill, the recoveruble amount is estimated for the cash-
generating unit to which it is attributable. A cash-gencrating unit is the smallest Group of assets that generates cash flows
which are independent of other Groups of assels.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of iniangible assets acquired in a
business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at
cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, Amortisation is recognised in the profit or loss on
a straight-linc basis over 5 years. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised
and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

Research and development

Research costs which predominately refate to client technical solutions and IT arc expensed as incurred. Development
expenditures on an individual project are recognised as an intangible asset when the Group can demonstrate:

The iechnical fcasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available for use or sale
Its intention to complete and its ability and intention to use or sell the asset

‘How the asset will generate futurc economic benefits

The availability of resources to complete the assct

The ability 10 measurc rcliably the expenditure during development

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carricd at cost less any accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation of the assel begins when development is complete and the asset
is available for use. Amortisation is recognised in the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over 7 years. During the period of
development, ihe asset is tested for impairmeént annually,

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulatcd depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Cost
comprises the aggregatc amount paid and the fair value of any other consideration given to acquire the asset and includes costs
directly attributable to making the assct capable of operating as intended.

Depreciation is provided ou all property, plant, and equipment, other than land, on a straight-line basis over its expected useful
life as follows:

Leasehold improvements 3-30 ycars
Plant and Equipment 3 - 10 years

Frechold land is not depreciated. Provision for permanent diminution in the value of land is charged to the statement of profit
or loss.
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Skanska UK Plc (Registered number: 00784752)

Notes to the Consolidated Financinl Statements
For The Year Ended 31st December 2021

2. Accounting policics - continued
Financial instruments

All financial instruments, including derivafives, are recagnised as a financial assct or financial liability in the statement of
financial position when the Group beccomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. A regular way purchase or
sale of a financial asset is recognised in and derccognised from the statement of financial position using trade date accounting,.
A financial asset is derecogniscd from the statement of financial position when the contractual rights to cash flows from the
financial asset expire or when the Group transfers the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset orretains
the contractual rights to receive cash flows, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay cash flows to one or more recipicnts,
A financial lisbility is derccogniscd from the statement of financial position only when the contractual obligation is fulfilled,

cancclled or expires.

Preseniation of financial asscts is based on the Group’s business mode! and the contractual cash flows of the asset. A financial
asset is measured at amortised cost if ihe assef is held within the framework of a business model the objective of which is to
hold financial assets in order to collect coniractual cash flows, and the cash flows on specified dales are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. A financial asset is measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income if the assct is held according to a business model the abjeciive of which can be achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and sclling financial assets, and the cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding. A financial assct is measured at fair value though profit or loss if it is not mecasured at
amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income. All financial asscts arc measured at amortised cost. The
Group is only entitled to reclassify all relevant financial assets when the Group changes its business model for managing
financial asscts. Reclassification of financial liabilitics is not permitted.

Financial asscts and liabilities are initially measured at fair value plus or minus transaction costs upon acquisition of a financial
asset or financial liability for a financial asset or financial liability that is not micasured at fair value through profit or loss.
Trade receivables that do not coniain a significant financing component are measured upon initial recagnition at their
transaction price (as defined in [FRS 15). Afier initial recognition, financial assets are measured at amortised cost. Subsequent
measurement of financial liabilities is at amortised cost or fair value through profit or loss.

The Group applies the impairment requirement to expected credit losses on financial assets and a loss provision for these is
recognised as a deduction from the assct. On every closing day the loss provision is to be cquivalent to an amount reflecting
the expected credit losses for the remaining time until maturity if the credit risk has increased significantly since it was initially
recognised. If the credit risk has not increased significantly since it was first recognised, the loss provision is to be equivalent
to 12 months of expected credit losses. For trade receivables, contractual assets and lease receivables, the loss provision is
always to be at an amount equivalent to the remaining time to maturity. The Group measurcs expecied credit Josses iaking into
account an objective and probability—weighted amount, the time value of moncy, reasonable and supportable information
about past evenis, current conditions and forccasts of future cconomic conditions,

Offsctting of financial assets and financial liabilitics occurs when there is a legal right to offsct items against each other and
the intenlion to either settle these items on a net basis or simultaneously divest the asset and scttle the liability.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net rcalisable value.
Costs incurred in bringing cach product to ifs present location and condition are accounted for, as follows:
- Swocks: Purchase cost on a first-in/first-out basis
- Properties: Cost comprises direct materials and ‘where applicable, dircet labour costs and those overheads, not
including any gencral administrative overheads, that have been incurred in bringing the property to its present

location and condition, as well as directly attributable borrowing costs.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of busincss, less cstimated costs of completion and.the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash

Cash in the statement of financial position comprises cash at banks and on hand and with a maturity of three months or less,
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the Consolidaied and Company statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash, as
defined above.
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Notes to the Consalidated Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 31st December 2021

2. Accounting policies - continued
Taxation

Current income tax is recoguised in the statement of comprehensive income, except tax relating to items recognised dircctly
in equity is recognised in cquity and not in the statement of profit or loss. Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions wherc appropriate.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount cxpected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authoritics. The tax rates and tax. laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the
rcporting date in the countrics where the Group operales and generates taxable income.

Deferred taxation is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the statement of financial position date
between the tax bascs of asscis and linbilitics and their carrying amounts for accounting purposes cxcept for temporary
differences arising on the revaluation of assets and the fuiure remittance of undistributed earnings from subsidiaries. Deferred
tax assels are recorded only to the extent that they are considered recoverable.

Foreign currency transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the entity's functional currency by applying the spot exchange rate
ruling at the date of the transaction. Monctary assets and liabilities denominated in forcign currencies are retranslated at the
functional currency ratc of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. All differences are taken to the profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in lerms of historical cost in a foreign currency arc translated using the exchange rates
at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchangg rates at the datc when the fair value was determined.

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign opcrations are translated into sterling at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the reporting date and their statements of profit or loss are translated at exchange rates prevailing ai the dates of the
transactions. The exchange differences arising on translation for consolidation are recognised in OCL On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of OCI relating to that particular foreign operation is reclassified to profit ar loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a forcign opcration and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities arising. on the acquisition are treated as asscts and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the spot
rate of exchange at the reporting datc.

Employee benefit costs

Certain of the Group's employees are members of a Group-wide defined benefit pension plan. The cost of providing benefits
is calculated annually by indcpendent actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The charge to the profit or loss reflects
the current scrvice cost of such obligations. The expected return on plan assets and the interest cost on scheme liabilitics arc
included within financial income and expenses in the profit or loss. The retirement bencfit deficit recognised in the statcment
of financial position represents the excess of the present valuc of scheme liabilities over fair value of scheme asscts.
Differences between the actual and cxpected returns on assets and experience gains and losses arising on scheme liabilities
during the year, together with differences arising {rom changes in assumptions, are recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive incomg in the year.

The cost of defined contribution pension schemes is expensed to the profit or loss as incurred.
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past cvent, it is
probable that an outflow of resources cmbodying econamic bencfits will be required to settle the obligation and a rcliable
cstimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed,
for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement
is virtually certain. The éxpensc relating to a provision is prescated in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

1f the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions arc discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific io the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passape of
time is recognised as a financc cost.

Provisions for warranty-related costs arc recognised when the product is sold or service pravided to the customer. Initial
recognition is based on historical expericnce. The initial estimaie of warranty-relaied costs is revised annually,
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2. Accounting policies - continued
Leases

All lesses arc accounted for by-recognising a right-of-use asset and a lease liability except for:
e Leases of low valuc assets; and
e  Leases with a duration of 12 months or less.

Lease liabilifies are measured at the present value of the contractual payments due to the lcssor over the Jease term, with the
discount rate determined by refercnce to the rate inherent in the leasc unless (as is typicdlly the case) this is not readily
determinable, in which case the Group’s incremental borrowing rate on commencement of the lease is used. Variable lease
payments are only included in the measurement of the lease liability if they depend on an indeX or raté. In such cases, the
initial measurement of the lease liability assumes the variable elerent will remain unchanged throughout the-lease term. Other
variable lease payments are expensed in the period to which they relate.

On initial recognition, the carrying value of the lease liability also inclides:
* ‘amounts expected 10 be puyabic under any residual value guarantee;
» the exercisc price of any purchase option granted in favour of the Group if it is reasonsble certain to assess that
option;
¢ any penaltics payable for terminating the lease, if the teim of thie leasc has been estimated on the basis of termination
dption being exerciscd.

Right of use assets are iniiially measured at the amount of the lease liability, reduced for any lease incentives received; and
increased for:
o lcase payments madc at ot beforc commencement of the lease;
o initial direct costs incurred; and
o  the amount of any provision recognised where the Group is contractually required to dismantle, remove or resiore
‘the leased assct (typically lcaschold dilapidations).

Subsequent to initial measurement lease liabilities increase us @ result of interest charged at a constant rate on the balance
outstanding and are reduced for lease payments made. Rnghl-of use assels arc amortised on a straight-liné basis over the
remaining term of the lease or over the remaining ecoiiomic life of the asset if, rarely, this is judged to be shorter than the lease
term,

‘When the Group revises its ¢stimate of the term of any lease (bécause, for example, it re-assesses the probability of a lessee
extension or termination option being cxercised), it adjusts the carrying amount of the lease liability to reflect the payments to
muke over the revised term, wluch are dnscoumed atthe same dlscount rate that applicd on lu&se commencement. The carrymg

is revised. In boih cases an cquwalent adjustment is madc to thc carrymg value of the right-of-use assct, with the revised
carrying amount being amortised over the remaining (revised) lease term.

When. the Group renegotiates the contractual terms of a lease with the lessor, the accounting depends on the nature of the
modification: ‘

o if the rcnegotlatlon results in onc or more additional assels being leased for-an amount commensuralc with the
standalone price for the additional rights-of-use obtained, the modification is accountcd for as a separate leasc in
accordance with the above policy;

o in all other cases where the rencgotiated increases the scope of the lease (whethcr that is an extension to the lcase
term, or one or more additional asscts being leised), the lease liability is remeasured. using the discount rate
applicable on the modification date, with the right-of-use asset being adjusted by the same amount;

s  Ifthe renegotiation results in a decrease in the scope of the lease, both the carrying amounit of the tease liability and
right-of-usc assct are reduced by the same proportion to reflect the partial of full terminétion of the lease with any
difference recognised in proﬁl ar loss. The leasc liability is then further adjustéd to ensure its carrying amount
reflects the amount of the renegotinied payments over the renégotiated term, with the modified lease payments
discounted at the rate applicablc on the madification date. The right-of-use assct is adjusted by the same amount.

For contracis that both convey a right to the Group to use an identified asset and require services to be provided to the Group

by the lessor, the Group has elected to account for the entire contract as a lease, i.c. it does allocate any amount of the
contractual payments to, and account separately for, any servicés provided by the supplier as part of the contruct.
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2. Accounting policics - continued

Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as lessce)

The Group Icases a number of praperties from which it operates, In some cases, the lease contracts provide for payments to
increase each year by inflation or reset periodically to market rental rates. In some property leases the periodic rent is fixed

over the lease term.

The Group also leases certain items of plant and equnpmenL Leases of plant, equipment and vehicles comprise only fixed
payments over the lease terms,

The percentages in the table below reflect the current proportions of lease payments that arc cither fixed or varigble. The
sensitivity reflects the impact on the carrying amount of lease linbilities and right-of:use assets if there was an uplift of 5% on
the balance shect dale to leasc payments that are variable.

31st December 2021
Payments Lease Fixed Variable

in the year Contracts Paymeats paymeats Sensitlvity

£000 Number % % £000

Property leases with payments 4,833 n 29 329
linked to inflation -
Property leases with fixed 3,603 25 2

payments

Lenses of plant and equipment 4,173 472 25
Vehicie leases 3,958 1,704 24

16,567 2,212 7t 29 329

The Group sometimes ncgotiates break clauscs in its property leases. On a case-by-case basis, the Group will consider whether
the absence of a break clause would expose the Group to excessive risk.

At 31st December 2021, the carrying amounts of ledsc liabilities are not reduced by the amount of payments that wauld be
avoided from exercising break clauses because on both dates it was considered reasonably certain that the Group would not
excrcise its right to exercise any right to break the lcase. Total lease payments of £1,408,000 are potentially avoidable were
the Group to exercisc break clauses at the carlicst opportunity.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs direcily attributable to the acquisition or construction of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of
time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing cosls consist of intercst and other costs thal the Group incurs in
connection with. the borrowing of funds.

The interest capitalised is the gross interest incurred on the Group's development specific borrowings. Interest is capitalised
from the commencement of the development work until the date of pructical completion.
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3. Accounting judgements and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards in conformity with
the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and. associated
assumptions are based on hisiorical experience and various other factors that arc believed to be reasonable under the
circumistances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of asscts and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates,

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimatc is revised if the revision affects only that and prior periods, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both currcnt and future periods.

The kcy estimates and judgements in drawing up the financial statements arc in connection with construction contracts in
progress, claims on construction couatracts, the valuation of pension liabilitics and investments in subsidiary underiakings
impairment tests and lease length and incremental borrowing rate used,

Principal assumptions underlying the valuation of defined benefit pension liabilities (Note 28) - These assumptions werc set
on the advice of the schemes’ actuaries having regard to current market conditions, history, and factars specific to the scheme.

Determinatian of lease term for some lease contracts in which the Group is a lessee - The Group determines the lcase term as
the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to éxtend the lease if it is rcasonably
certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain noi o be exercised.
The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and iermination oplions. The Group applics judgement in
cvaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether to exercisc the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers
all relcvant factors that create an. cconomic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or icrmination. After the
commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significani event or change in circumstances that is within
its control and affects its ability ta excrcise or not to exercise the option to sencw or to terminale.

Determination of the incremental borrowing rate used to measure lease liabilities - The Group cannot readily determine the
interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, ituses its incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The [BR
is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar tern, and wiih a similar security, the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic cnviranment. The [BR therefore
reflects what the Group ‘would have to pay’, which requires estimation when no observable rates are available. The 1BR is
determined on a quarterly basis, by the Group's ultimate parent entity, Skanska AB. Discount rates used arc disclosed in Note
24 of these financial statements.
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4. Revenue

Expected revenue recognition for remaining performance obligations

Contracts may run for a pertod greater than one year. The expected revenue recognition relating to ongoing or won contracts,
at 315t December 2021 is as follows

2022 2023 2024 2025+ Total
£'m £'m £'m £'m £'m
‘Expécied Revenue 1,092 632 459 734 2917
2021 2020
£000 £000
Construction works 944,014 954,434
‘Rendering of services , 178,684 167,844
{FRS 15 revenue from. contracts with customers 1,122,698 l: 122,278

No revenue was derived from exchange of goods or services (2020: £nil). Revenuc recogniscd in the year from amounts that
were included in the contract liability at the beginning of the penod equals £88,065,000 (2020: £85,828,000). Reévenue
recognised in the year from perforinance obligations satisficd in prévious years cquals £2 ,700,000 (2020: £5,850,000);

5. Other operating income

2021 2020
£'000 £7000
Government grants 302 . 4,018

Government grants relate to supporting the payroll of the Company's employees during the COVID-19 paridemic. The
Company had to commit to spending the assistance on payroli expenscs and does not have any unfulfilled obligations relating

to this program.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemeénts
For The Year Ended 31st'‘December 2021

6. Employees arid Directors

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Other pénsion costs

The amount recognised as an expense for thgfbllp\ving‘pen,sjon plans is'ds follows:

Defiried benefit costs
Defined contribution costs

The average monthly number-of employees during the yedr was as follows:

Canstruction
Administration.

‘Directors’ remuneration
Lang-term. incentive plans
Pensions'

Information regarding the highest pdid Dircctor is as follows:

-Directors’ remuneration
Long-terny incentive plans
Accrued pension as at 31st December -

The rumber of Directors to whom retircment bienicfits were accruing at ycar end was as follows:

Defined contribution schemes
Defined benefit schiemes

as

2021 2020
£'000 £1000
222,807 263,884
23,759 29,227
_ 24,987 28,516
271,553, 371,627 .
2021 12020
£2000 £000
12,802 2,809
22,185 25,707
24,987 28516
2021 2020
1,042 1,575
2,814 3,702
3,856 5277
2021 2020
£ £
2,173,378 3,343,397
162,823 57,002
19,060 7.479
2021 2020
£ £
383,501 676,844
55,147 18,699
31,984 31,813
2021 2020
1 -
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Notes to the Consolldatcd Fmancia] Statements
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7. Net finance costs

Finagice income:
Bank interest:

Finance costs:
Interest expense on léasc liabilities
Interest on pension scheme liabilities

Net finance income

8. Profit before income tax

Included in cost of sales:

Cost of i inventory recognised as expense
Dcprematlon of owncd asscts

Profit on digpisal of fixed asscis
Dcprccmuon of" nght-of uSe asscls
Expense relating to'shoft-icrin lenses
Expense relating to low valdg leases’
Research costs

Included in gdministraﬁvg' expenses:

Depreciation of nl,ht-of-usc assets’
‘Impairment of nghl~of~usc assets
Foreign éxchange gains,

Audil of Group's consolidated financial stitercnts
Audit of parent Caotmpany's financial staiements
‘Audit of pareit Compaiy's subsidiarics and rclated cntitics

Total audit fees
Audit relatcd seevices

Other non-sudit service fees
Total fees paid by Group

46,

2021 2020
£000 £000
_ 3,060 3,333
346 628
2,022 2,476
1,038 857 .
2021 2020
£2000 £000
847 455
3,484 3,485
(853) )
6,925 6,898
2,512 655
187 .
178 73
2,922 2,723
1,446
- (30)
5 5
2. 2
577 581
584 588
584 588
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statenvents
For Thé Year Ended 31st December 2021

9. Income tax

The major components of income lax expense for the years éoded 31st December 2021 and 2020 are:

Consolidated profit or loss 202} 2020
. £000 £°000
Current income tax.
Current incomme tix charge 8,676 1,695
Adjustments in respcct of current income tax of previous year 3,594 (1,060)
Total current tax charge 12270 635
Deferred tax
Current year tax (crédit) / charge (481) 1,423
Adjustmems in respect of current tax of previous year 2,869 741
Impact of changeg in cu{pomle tax rate (3,898) (1,944)
Tota! deferred tax (credit) / charge (1,510) — 220
Total tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 10,760 . . 855
Consolidated other comprehensive income 2021 2020
£000 £2000
Cuirent tax credit on pensions » (3,388) (2,338)
Deferred tax charge on pensions (note 28) 21,416 1,276
Total tax charge / (credit) reported in other compreéhensivelncome 18,028 (1,062)

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by UK tax rate for 2021 anid 2020:

Agcounting profit before tax from continuing operations 34,746 13,033
Profit before tax from a disconlinued operdtion 38,520 9,403
Accounting profit before income tax 73.266 22,436
‘Profit before tax multiplied by standard rate of carporation tax in the UK
19% (2020: 19%) 13,920 4,263
‘Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 716 557
‘Adjustment in respect of prior ycars 6,463 (319)
Change in tate (3,345) 2,611
SEOP adjusiment to OCI (26) 187
Total tax charge 17728 2,077
Income tax attributable to continuing operations 10,760 855
Incoine tax attributable to discontinued Gperations . 6,968 1,222.
17,728 2,077

Changes in corporation tax rate

The Finance (No.2) Act 2015 reduced the main rate of UK corpomnon tax o 19%, cffective from 1 April 2017. A further
reductiod in the UK corporation 1ax rate to 17% was ¢xpected to come into.cffect frorm. | April 2020 (as cnacted by Finance
Act 2016 on |5 Scptember 2016). Hoivever, lcglslauon introduced in the Fifiaricé Act 2020 (enacted on 22 July 2020) repealed
the rcductmn of the corparation tax rate, thereby mammmmg the current rate of 19%. The UK Budgct 2021 announcements
‘on 3 March 2021 included measurcs. to support economic recovery as d fesult of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic. These-
included an increase to. the UK’s main corporatnon tax rate to 25%, which is-due to be cffective from 1 ‘April 2023, These
changes jvere substantively enacted on 24 May 2021 and hedce deferréd taxes oni the balunce shect have been measured at
25% (2020 — 19%) which rcpresenis the future corporation tax rate that was cnacted at the balance sheét date.
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10. Discontinued operations

On 24th February 2020, thie Compnny publicly asnounced the decision of its Board of Directors to withdraw from highways
mainienance, rail maintenance and street lighting maidtenance sectors snd therefore sell the Infrastructare Services operating
unit. At thé énd of 2020, the shareholders of the Compxmy approved the. plnn to sell the operating -unit and Infmstmcmre
Servnccs was classified ‘as a dlsposal Group held I‘or ‘sale and: préseited asa discontifiued operafion: The. presentatlon of the
prior year ¢onsolidated profit and loss account hs been wpdated 6 be in compliance: with the presentation and. dxsclosnrc
requirements as per TAS 1 and IFRSS; Asa’ resull, the Group hag rémoved the discontinued and.total colimn from the prior
year consolidaied profitand loss account and instead presented the results of the discontinued operauon 4. a singlc line item
onthe face of the consolidated profit and loss account within proﬁt after tax from discontinied operations’. The details of thc
companents.of the disconitinued operations have been’ included withinihis note, which has bieén regtaied.

The sale of . Im"rastrucnuc Scrvxces was complcted on the 30th Apiil 2021 for cash procceds of £33, 722,000. The results of
the operating: unit up until the date 6f disposal is ‘preserited below.

2021 2020
£2000 £000
Revenue 126,888 334,040
Cost 6f Sales (110,644) (310,099)-
Gross prof t 16,244 ‘23,941
Other operating income ) - 387
Administration cxpenses ' (6.401) (13,831
Operating proﬁt 9,843 10,497
Gain on d:sposal of business-operations 29 069 ) -
Finance costs (392) (1,094)
Profit beforc tax from discontinued operations ’ 38,520 9,403
Tax:
Relaied to pre-tax pmf it from. grdinary activities (1,796) (1:222)
Related.to gain on sdlc of discontinued operahon . (5,172) -
Profit for the year from discontinued vperations 31,552 ‘8,181

The major classes of ubscts and hablhucs of lhc lnfrastructurc Serv:ces operating unit at the date of i disposal and the associatcd

2021
£7000

Assets.
Intangible assets 1205,
,Propcrty, plant-and equipment ;958
Right of use assets 24,840
[nventory 3;191
‘Contragt asscts 28,179
Debtors’ 38

59,411
Liabilities
Contract liabilities 26,349
Creditors. 1,933
‘Provisions 1,168
Lease liabilitics . 23,132

52,582
Net assets disposed 6,829
Sale proceeds 33,722
Net assets dlsposcd (6, 829)
Disposal tosts and wairanties provided (17,224)
Gain on disposnl -29.069.
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10. Discontinued operations - conlinued

The net cash flows incurred by Infrastructure Services, are as follows:

2021 2020
£000 £'000
Opérating 3912 17,804
lavesting. (103) (1,065)
Financing _(2302) (6.833)
Nét cash inflow . 1,507 . 9906

11. Profit/(loss) of parcnt Company-

As permitted by -Secti'op 4‘0‘8 of the' Companies Act 2006, the statement of comprehensive income of the parent Company is
not presented as part of thesc financial statcments. The Company’s profit ‘afier tax for the financial ycar was £27,406,000
(2020: £35,213,000).

12. Intangible assets

Group ]
IT Software
£2000
Cost v
At Ist.January 202] 21,278
Additions 2,804
Disposals (14,448)
At 31st Deceriiber 2021 9,634
Amortisation
At Lst Janisary 2021 8,205
Disposals (8,205)
At 315t December 2021 -
Impairment )
At 1st Japuary 2021 6,243
‘Disposals (6.243)
Net book value
At 31st December 2021. 9,634
At 31st December 2020 6.830.
Company
IT Software
£°000
Cast )
At 1st January 2021, 6,830
Additions 2,804
At 31st December 2021 9.634
Amorfisation ) '
At lst Jmium'y 2021 and 31st December 2021 -
Net book value
At 31st December 2021 9,634
At31st December 2020, 6,830
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13. Property, plant und equipment

Group

Cost

At Ist January 2021
Additions

-Disposals

At 31st December 2021
pcpreciﬁgipn

At 1t Janiiary 2021
Charge for the year
Elirinated on disposal
/At 31st December 2021

‘Net book value
At 31st December 2021

Af 315t December 2020

:Cathpany

Cost

At It Jaouary 2021
Additions

At 315t December.2021
Depreciation

At 1st January 2021
Charge for the year.

At 315t Decemiber 2021

NetLook value
.Ar31st December 2021

-At 31st Decémber 2020

Freehold Leaschold Plant snd
property  improveiménts machinery Totals
T .£'000 -£7000 £000 £000
97 10,742 59,601 70,440
- - (2,107) (2,107)
97. 11481 60.226 ._71,804.
- 5,000 44,866 49,866
. 388 3,096 3,484
- - (1,535) (1,539).
S - 5,388 . 46427 51.815
. .97 .. . .'6093 13,799 19,989
97 5,742 14,735 20,574
Leasehold Plant:and
improvements ‘muchinery Totals
£000 £9000 £000
*10,626 19,131 29,757
739 820 . _ 1,559
1,365 19,951 _313i6
4,884 18,584 23,468
388. 1,003. 1.391
- ...5272. 19,587... 24,859
6.093: .. .364 6,457
5,742, 547 6,289.
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14. Right-of-use Assets

Provisions .
At 1st January 2021 and 31st December 2021

Nét book value )
At31st December 2021

At 3]st December 2020

51

-Group Land and Plantand Motor _
Buildings equipiment ‘Vehieles Totals
£'000 £000 £'000 £000
At 1st Janusry 202] 39,404 128 5,994 45,526
Additions. 675 4,724 4,454 9,853
Deprecidtion (3992) (2:426) (3.429) (9,847)
Impairment (1,446) B - (1,446)
Effcct of madification of lease terms 2,436 - 38 2,474
‘Disposals (1,200) - (699) (1,899)
At 31st December 2021 35877 2,426 6,358 | ' 44,66]-
Company Land and Plant and Motor
‘Buildings cquipment: Vechicles Totals
£'000 £2000 £:000 £000
At 15t January 2021 35,833 127 5,993 41,953
‘Additions : - 3,622 4,454 8,076
Depreciation (1,865) (2,271) (3,430) (7,566)
Impairment ) (700) . - 00)
Effect of modification of lease tcrms 2,276 o 38 2,314
Disposals - - (697) (697)
At 315t December 2021 35,544 1,478 _ 6,358 43,380
15. Investments
Group Shares'in
participations
£°000
" Cast )
At Ist January 2021 and 31st December 2021, 3,937

3,397

3.937




~Skanska UK Plc (Registered niimber:. 00784752).

‘Notes ta the Consolidated Firiancial Statements
l"or 'l'lte Year Endcd 315! Deccmbcr 2021

15. Investinénts — continued

‘Compuny.
Invéstment'
in Group
undcrtakmgs’
£000
Cost

At Ist January 2021 afid 315t Decomber 2021 903611

Provisions ’ ] .
Atlst Janunry 2021 41,123:
Provision:for ycar 340
At 31st December 2021 41463
Net book value L .

A3 11 Degermber 202i 48,898 -
At 315t Decernber 2020 . 49,238

The Compiny's investments at the Statément of Financial Position date in'the share capital of coimpanics arg listed below:

Subsidiarics.

owried but.not - cor olied by Lhc Company and thercfore the rcsu]ts of these compA
'ﬁnancml Statengans. All companies are n:gis(crcd_ in, Bngland nnd Wa]es exccpx C

Odarslovsv? gén 113‘ 225 92 Lund

The following sul{sidiér@es are 100% directly qwnq{L All shars ar¢ thc same class of ordindry shares.

Skanska Construchon UI( Ltd
:Skanska’ ijcct Dcvcloprnenls Ltd+
Skansku Téchrology Ltd

' Constriction Ltd**¢

n Mmmg Lid#**

ka >l|on Company Ltd#a’
Skanska ﬂealthcarc Tmstccs Ltd"‘*

Trollopc & Colls Ltd,
: Skansl_m Const_ructxon_ Servnccs Lid




Skanska UK Plc (Registeréd number: 00784752)

‘Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statéments.
For Thc Yc.:r Ended 3ist Dcccmbcr 2021

15. Investments continued
The following subsidiaries arc 100% indirectly owiied unless stated gtherwise

Ccmcnlahon Skariska Lid

Ccmcnlahon Skanskn lrcland'Ltd (m qudzuon)
Clark & Ferin Skans a Lad

Skanska.l V. Pro;ec&s ;td
Skanskn MR_]OI’ Projects'Ltd

Skanska Rashicigh Weatherfoil Ltd

Wilson & Jenninps Ltd##*

SPD  Moargate Ltd*

SED Temple Gircus Ltd“

.SPD Engm’e Shed2 Lid**

SFD Templegnlc Ltd**

"Skanska Construétion Services Trugtee Lid*+*+

Skanska TAM! Ltd#ewe

Skariska ESS ConstructxonHB (25% owned)

.Skiinska RM PSP lened“" (87.5% o\vncd) . (Registered office: Third Floor Broud Quay House, Prince Stréet, Brisiol, BS1.4DJ),
NPH Hca]thcm (Holdm gs) Limited *#+* (5 0% owned) ‘(Registered oﬂ‘ ice: 3rdFloor, South Em'ldmg. 200Aldersgnle Sireet Landan, )
ECI4 $HD)

“Thé following Comipanics dre exerpt froti publishifig audited-accounts under Section 479A of the Compasics Act 2006;

“Trollope & Colls’Ltd rcglstrauon 00079287

Skaiiska Coristruéiian Regions Lid - gustralnon 00225316
Skanska Consu‘uclmn Services Limited = reglstmtmn 04067668
I ( 0473] 18

Sk:mskn Jv. Pro;cc!s leltcd rcg:lstnmou 03686027
~Sl\anska Major Pro_;ec(s lencd = reglsu'atlon‘ 00993 83:

Skanskarchhnology Lmuted reglstrutm‘ 009321 58
Skanska Projeci ] cvclopmgnts Limited ~ régistration. 06009021
Skanska‘Trifrastniciife Déveiopment UK [.I‘mltcd reglstmuon 03024337
‘Skanska Infrastrucrurc InvEstriient UK-Linhii
'SPD.Moorgaic Limited — rcgls: iti :

SPD Temiple Gircus Limited ~ regnslrnhon 102724]9
SPD Engine Shed 2 Limited — reg:stmuon 102‘75093
SPD Templcgatu Limiied - Yegistration 097943!4

16: Inventories

:Group
2021 2020
£2000 moo
S(ocks . 578
Propcmes 4.089
4,667
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Skanska UK Plc (Registered number: 60784752)

Notes to the Consclidated Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 31st December 2021

17. Trade dnd othier reccivables

Group Company

2021 2020 2021 2020
£000 £1000 £1000 £'000

Currént:
Trude reccivables 59,444 57,410 8 656
Arounts owed by parent catity 39,493 40,120 39,493 40,120
Amounts owed by subsidiary companics - - 194,725 187,951
Amounts owed by other group undertakings 460 463 _l',589 1,597
Other.receivables ' 32,320 36,089 17,127 11,852
Prepayments and accrued incomc 34,021 11,609 6,548 4,273
165,738 145,691 259,490 246,449

Trade and: other receivables arc part of the Group's aperating cycle and dre-recogniscd as current asséls. Trade and: oiher
reccivables are non-interest bearing and are. generally on terms of 30 10 90 days seutlement. As at 31st December 2021, trade
receivables with an initial carrying value of £4,194,000 (2020: £3,409,000) were impdircd.and fully provided for.

The table below shows the ageing profile of trade receivables (£000);

Current 31-60 days 61-90 days 91-120 days 120+ days Total
Group 55,113 2,010 248 205 1,868 59,444
Company - 8 - - - P

18. Coantract assets

At 315t December-2021, the Group had contraci asséts of £83,534,000 (2020: £85,433,000), At 31st December 2021, the
Company had contract assets of £32,788,000 (2020: £27,211,000). -Contract assets consists of amounts recoverable on,
contracts. The change in contract assets in the year is due to normal activity and timing of certification of work done in the
construction business.

19. Cash and cash equivalents

Group Company
2021 2020, 2021 2020
£'000 £000 £'000 £°000
Bank accounts 519,650 422,385 - 2,839

iricluded in this total is £57,000,000 resiricted cash held in joint arrangements (2020: £60,033,000).
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Skanska UK Pic (Registered iumber: 00784752)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statenients
For The Year Ended 31st December 2021
20. Called up share capital
Authorised, allotted, issued and fully paid share capital:
Number: Class Nominal Value: 2021 2022

_ £
3,300,000,000 Ordinary £0.05 165,000,000 165,000,000

21. Reserves

Group
‘Retained
earnings
£000
At ist January 2021 103,177
Profit for the year 55,538
Net actuarial gain on defined pension schemes : 72,007
Forcign exchange loss (1,402)
Employeé share award schenie 2,490
Incomic tax relating io itcms of other comprehensive income (18,028)
Dividends (16,100)
At 31st December 2021 197,682
22. Trade and other payables
Group Compsny

2021 2020 2021 2020
£000 £7000 £7000 £'000

Current:
Trade paydbles 39,571 33,159 3,149 2,475
Amounts owed to parent entity - 3,235 - 5,823
Amounts owed 10 subs:dmry companies - - 89,585 89,822
Other payables 52,904 38,646 19,195 15,532
Accruals and deferred income 192,713 143,428 26.665 13,969
285,188 218,468 _...138,594 127,621

Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities:
- Trade pdyables-are non-interest bearing and are normally on 45-day payment terms.
- Otherpayables are non-interest bearing
- Interestpayable is norma]ly settled guarterly throughout the financial year.
-* TFor terms and conditions with parent eritify, subsidiary comjanics and other group undertakings, refer to Noic 31,
- Fot explanations on the Group's liquidity risk- management process, refer to Note 25.

23. Contract liabilities
ALBISt Dccembcr 2021, thc Group had contract llabmues of £85,354,000 (2020: £88,065 000) Commcl [mblh(m ccnmsts of

habllmcs in the ycar is due to pormal nctxv:ty and ummg of certification of work donc in the constmcuon busmcss
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Skanska UK Plc (Registered number: 00784752)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 31st December 2021

24, Lease liabilitics

Group

At st January 2021

Additions

Interest expense

Ledse payments’

Effcct of modification of lease terms
-Disposals

At 315t December 2021

Company

At It Tanuary 2021

.Additions

Intérest expense

Lease payments

‘Efféct of modification of ledse térms
Disposals

At3lst December.2021

The table below shows the payments and commitments for operating lcases not capitalised

-Short term lease expense
Low value lease expense

The tabic below shows incremental borrowing rate (TBR) used to measure lease liabilitics:

:Lense Term 1 year 2 years
Q4 2020 1.7

Ql 2021 1.5

Q22021 1.3 1.4
Q3 2021 1.3 )
Q42021 1:6

Land and Plant and Maotar
Buildings cquipment Vehicles Totals
£000 £°000 £7000 £000
57,237 120 5,990 63,347
675 "4,724 4,454 9,853
1,474 43 159 1,676
(8,137) (2,412) (3,598) (14,147)
2,436 - 38 2474
(1,205) - (702) (1,907)
52,480 7 2,475 6,341 61,296
Land and ‘Plant and Motor
Buildings equipiment Vehiclés Totals
£000 £'000 £2000 £'000
48,754 121 5,989 ~5'4,_8651
- 3,622 4,454 8,076
1,269 27 159 1455
(4,395) (2,256) (3.598) (10,249)
2,276 - 38 2314
- - (706) (706)
47,904 .. .. 1514 6,336 55,754
Group Compiny
2021 2021
£'000 £'000
2,512 -
187 -
Discount rate (%) )
years 5 years 10 years 15 years 30 year
1.7 2.2 33 35 43
1.6 2.1 3.1 32 4.0
1.5 20 3.0 3.1 3.7
1.6 2.1 30 3.1 is
2.0 24 3.1 31 33
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 31st December 2021

25. TFinancial instraments
Exposure to credit, interest rate and liquidity risk arises in the normal course of the Group and the Company's business.

Credit risk

Management has a credit policy in place. Credit evaluations are performcd onall prospective customers prior to entering into

constiuction contracts and cxposure to credil risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. At the statemeni of financial position date.
there ivere no significant concéntrations of credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by. the carrying

amnount of tradc reccivables and contract asscis at the statement of financial position date.

Interest rate risk

The Group and Company do not seek to reduce exposure to fluciuations in inlerest rates through the use of derivative financiat
instruments. The Group meets its day to day working capital requirements through an inter-Company UK pooling arangerent
and does not have-any bank dcbt or other external borrowings or facilities.

-Liquidity risk

The Group uses cash-flow projections as a means of managing the fluctuations in short-term liquidity and to minimise the risk
that it cannot meet its payment obligations due to lack of liquidity. As at 31st-December 2021, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents totalling £519,650,000 (2020: £422,385,000) and no debt. Included in this total is £57,000,000 restricted cash
held in Joint arrengements (2020: £60,033,000).

The Board is confident that the Group has sufficient cash resources in light of the challenges arising from the COVID-19
pandemic and dre continually assessing the impact of COVID-19 on cash flow and forecasts across the business (Note 2).

Effective interest rates and matunty annlysns

‘As at 315t December 2021, income-earning financial asscts of the Group comprised cash and cash equivalenis totalling
£519,650,000 (2020: £422,385 ,000) and of the Company £nil (2020: £2,839,000). lnterest is earncd on net cash balances at
floating rates linked to the Swedish bage riite. The Group has no overdraft or bank debt.

Fair Value

The carrying amounts shown. in the financial position ‘'of all financial asscts and financial liabilitics are not considered to be
matcrially differeni to their fair valuc, The investments do not have a quoted price in an active market and arc measured ai
cost because the fair value cannot othierwise be measured.

Senasitivity analysis
At 31st December 2021 and 31st December 2020, it was estimated that a general risc of one percentage point in interest rates
would have no maierial impact on profit before tax.

Capital requircments vary between business streams. The Group's construction projects are mainly based on customer funding,
As a resull, in its Canstruction Business stream, the Group can operate with low levels of cash investment (negative working
capital). However, the equity requirement for a construction Company is substantial and is related to the large business volume
and to the risks iherent in the various types of construction assignments carried out. The Group must also take into account
the performance guarantees required in procured projects. The Board has determined that the Group's equily is at a reasonable
level based on what its financial position requires.

Clipital Management

Capital rcquii"efncnts vary bétween business streams. The Group's construction projects are mainly based on customer funding.
As a resull, in its construction business strcam, the Company can.operaic with low levels of cash investment (negative working
caplml) The free working capital wuhm the construction business strcam together with the Group's operations make it possible
for the Group to finance investiments in its own project development.

A numiber of financial targets have been established that are judged to best reflect the profitability of the operations and best
demonstrate the financial scope for investment and growth. The return on equity and on capital employed-is a measure of how
well the capital provided by the shareholders and lenders is béing used. No changes were made in the objectives, policics or
processes Tor managing capital during the years ended 31st December 2021 and 2020,
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25. Finnncisl instruments = continucd

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
v £2000 £000 £000 £°000
Loans and receivables
Contiact agsets 83,534 85,433 32,788 27,211
Trade receivables 59,444 57,410 8,9‘5"7 656
Amounts owed by fellow Groip undertakings 39,953 40,583 235,807 229,668
Other receivables 32,320 36,088 13,107 11,853
Financlal assets .
Cash and cash cquivalenis 519,650 422 385 - 2,839
Total Financial Assets 734,901 641,899 290,659 2712.227
Financial liabilities o
Contract liabilities 85,354 88,065 - 1,286
Trade payables 39,571 33,159 3,149 2,475
Amoints owed to fellow Group undertakings - 3,235 89,585 95,646
Othcerpayables 52,904 38,646 19,195 15,532
Leasc liabilitics 61,296 63,347 55,754 54,803
Borrowings - - 16,603 -
Total financial linbilities 239,125 226,452 1 é4-i286 . 169,802
Maturity analysis for non-derivative finnincial liabilities
On demand Less than 3 More than 3
- months months
£000 £'000 £000
Year ended 31st December 2021 ) o
Trade dnd other paydbles (Group) 2,306 67,813 22,536
‘Tradednd oihcr payables (Company) - 22,344 -
Year ended 315t December 2020
Trade and other payables (Group) 2,183 35,969 33,653
Trade and other payables (Company) - 15,691 2,315
The table below shows the undiscounted maturity analysis for lease liability payments:
Group Upto3 Between 3 Betwecn 1 Between 2 Overs
months and 12 and 2 ‘and § years
months yeirs years
At 31st December 2021 £:000 £'000 £2000 £000 £'000
Lease liabilities 3,492 8,852 1,756 12,388 39,809
Company Upta3 Betiveen 3 ‘Between 1 ‘Between.2 Over S,
months and 12 and 2 and § years
i months years years
At 315t December 2021 £7000 £'000 £'000 £000 £°000
Leasc liabilitics 2,516 6,177 6,552 10,854 39,467
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25. ‘Financial instruments — continued

2021 2020
£000 £000.
Trade and other paysdbles 285,188 218,468
Contract liabilitics 85,354 88,065
Lease liabilities - current 10,862 10,278
Less: cash and short-teemn deposits (519,650) (422,385) _
Net surplus ©7(138,246) (105,574)
Sharcholders’ equity 362,682 268,177
Capital and néi debt 224,436 162,603
Gearing ratio % -61.6% -64.9%
26. Provisions
Forward Warranty Other Total
loss on
contracts &
disputes
£'000 £000 £°000 £1000
2021 A
At 1st January 2021 6,236 62,669 13,921 82,826
Released in year (921) (8,557) (2,299) (11,777)
Created in year 3,085 26,149 24,080 53,314
Reclassification - (4,250) 430 (3,820)
Utilised (4,340) (9,155) (7,869) (21,394)
Disposals (299) - - (299)
Exchange differences ey (42) - (42)
At 315t December 2021 3,761 66,814 28,233 98,808
2020 ' )
At Ist January 2020 15,994 33,897 19,254 69,145
Released in year (6,103) (27,617) (6,498) (40,218)
Created in year 4,181 59,271 14,483 77,935
Reclassification (5,709) 6,445 (420) 316
Utilised 2,127) (9,159) (11 ,_898) (23,184)
Held for sale - (168) (1,000) (1,168)
At 315t Decenber 2020 6,236 62,669 13,921 82,826

The arount and timing of payment of provisions for liabilities is uncertain but they are expecied 10 be made substantially

within tweo years.

Warranty provisions are made ini the normal causé of our business. Other provisions include provisions for insurance and legal
claims, all of which are incurred in the normal course of business. Due to the nature of such potential liabilities the period of

utilisation is not ascertainable.

No provision is made for any tax on capital gains or tax arising in the event of the distribution of profits retained by overseas
subsidiaries and associates as no liability is expected to crystallise.

59



Skanska UK Plc (Registered number: 00784752)

‘Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For The Year Ended 31st December 2021

27. Deferred tax

Group

Accelerated Capital Allowances
Deferred taxon pension balance
Unrelicved trading osses

Other

Total

At beginning of year

‘Deferred tax movement m P&L
Deferred tax direct to equity

Tatal

Compiny

Accélerited Capital Allowances
Deferred tax on pension balance
Unrelieved trading losses

Other

Total

At beginning of year

Deferred tax movement in P&L
Deferred tax direct to equity

Total

2021 2020
Asset Liability Total Assct Lidability Total
£2000 £9000 £000 £2000 £000 £'000
1,742 : 1,742 2,127 - 2,127
- (13,496) (13,496) 5,953 - 5,953
610 - 610 2,962 - 2,962
6,941 - 6,941 4977 (2,556) 2,421
9793 (13496) (4,203) 16,019 2.556) 13,463
16,019 (2,556) 13,463 16,614 (1,842) 14,772
1,194 2,556 3,750 494 (714) (220)
(7,920) (13,496) (21,416) (1,089) - (1,089)
9293 (13496)_ (4,203) 16019 3,556) 13,463
2021 2020
Asset Liability Total Assct Liability Total
£000 £000, £:000 £000 £000 £1000
741 : 741 761 - 761
- (13,718) (13,718) 5,342 . 5,342
309 - 309 953 - 953
1,526 - 1,526 1,290 - 1,290
2576 (13,718) (11,142) 8,346 L 8,346
8,346. - 8,346 8,284 - 8,284
1339 - 1,339 817 - 817
(7,109) (13,718) (20,827) (755) - (755)
2,576 (13.718). (11,142 8,346 X 8346

The deferred tax assct has been recoggised as the Direciors have reviewed the Group's future forecast profits and dre satisfied

that there will be sufficient profits to utilise the deferred tax asset.
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28, Employee benefit obligations

The Group, through trustees, operates a number of pension schemes; The Skanska Pcnsion Fund, the Federated Pension Plan
and The MéNicholas Plc Retirement ‘Benefits Scheme. Details of the latest actuarial valuuuons and reviews and the
assumptions used by thg actuaries are set out beloiy.

For The MeNicholas Plc Retirement Benefit Scheme the Gmup conclude that there is not an unconditional right of refund and
theréfore under JAS 19, IFRIC 14, the Group only rccognises the nsset of the pension fund up to the limit of the liability, (the
asset ceiling). For the other pension schemes the Group conclude that that there is an unconditional nghtof refund and therefore
if there is a pension surplus this will be recogriised in the accounts.

Pension obligations and plan assets:

2021 2020

(%) (%)

Active members® portion of cbligations 5 15
Dormant pensnon rights 56 45
Pensioners” portion of obligations 39 40
Weighted average duration 20°years 20 years

There are various types of risk inherent i in the Company's défined-benefit pension plans. Pension oblxganons are.mainly
affected by the relevant discount rate, wage increases, inflation and life expectancy. The risk inberent in the plan assets is’
mainly market risk. Overal), these nsks may result in volsiility in the Company’s equity and in increased futiire pension costs
and higlier than estimated pension disburscments. Skanska continually monitors chnnges in its pension obhgatmns and updaics
the most lmportant assumpnons every quarter and ‘other assumptions at lcast once a ycar. Pension commitments are calculated
by independent actuaries. The Company has prepared policy documents for the management of plan.assets in the form of
"invesiment guidelines regulating permitted investments and allocation frameworks for these. In addition, the Company uscs
cxternal investment advisors who conunually monitor development of the plan assels. The. long duration of the pension
obligations is partly matched by long—term mvcstments in infrastruciure projecis and property investments, and investments in
long-term interest-bearing securitics.

1) The Skanska Pension Fund

The Group, in its capacity as employer, participates in The Skanska Pension Fund. The fund was closed to further accruals on
31stMarch 2018. Total contributions paid during the year by the Group (excluding cmployce contributions) were £15,030,000
(2020: £14,547,000). Ultimatcly, the contributions are met by the particular Group company for which the cmployees are
working: The Group expccts to contribule approximiately £13.7 million to the Fund in the riext financial ycear.

There are various types of" nsk inherent in the Company’s defined benefit pension plans. Pension obligations are mmnly
affected by the relevant discount rate, wage increases, inflation and life expectancy. The risk inherent in. the plan assets is
mainly market risk. Overall, these risks may result in volatility in the Company's equity and in increased future pension
costs and higher than estimated pension disbursements. Skanska continually monitors changes in its pension obligetions and
updates the most, imp’oﬁfmt assumptions cvery quarter and other assumptions at least once a year. Pension commitments are
calculated by independent actuaries.

The Company has prepared policy documents for the management of plan assets in the form of investment guidelines
regulating permitted investments and allocation framicivorks for thesc. In addition, the Company uses external investment
advisors who commually monitor development of the plan assets. The lang duration of the pension obhg:mons is partly
‘matched by the long-term investments in infrastructure projects and property investrents, and investments in long-term
mlcrest-beanng securitics.

The 31st December 2021 valuation i is an update of the actuarial valuation at 31st March 2019 but uses a lower rate of return
an assets to discount the scheme I1abll|txcs

The actuarial valuation in accordance with IAS 19 used the projected unii cost method based on the fouowing assumptions:

2021 2020 ‘2019 2018

(%) (%) (%) (%)

Inflation 3.25 3.00 3.00 3.25
Rate of increase of pension 3.10 2.90 290 315
Rate &f increase for deferred pension 2.65 230 2.20 225
Prc and post retircment rates to discount scheme liabilities 1.60 1.40 2.00 275
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28. Empléyce b‘én‘éﬁt’bbiig;:’ﬁons ~continued

2021 2020 2019 2018

£1000 £°000 £9000 £1000

‘Schem:liabilities (912,551) 1(928,099) (840,819) (747,751)
Schegiric dssets _ 967425 __. 899984 807,748 715,705
Total swiplus/(deficif) 54,874 (28,115) T@3071)y (32,046)
Rélated defeired tax (Imblhly)/asscl (13,719) 5,342 5,632 . 5448
Nét pension. asset/(liabilicy) 417155 . {22,773) . (27449) 126,598).

'Ijl@p_ foir value of the fund assets and the expected rétum 60 those assets are as follows:

Valuation Valdation of Expected Expectcd
of assets assets return: ‘retirn
2021 2020 2021 2020
£000 £000 % Y
Quoted UK. equities, 67:285. 96,144 1:40
Qiigied dverseds cquitics 107,096 241,501 1:40
Quoted gilts fixed 223,104, 160,099 1.40
Quotcd gilts: indcx linked 212,911 141,705 1.40
Qusted UK corporate “bonds fixed " 591 9,354 140
Quoted UK corpornte bouds index | lmkcd - 1.40
ioted goveriiment: 12,639 1:40
Quoted goyernmient bonds iridcx linked gverseds
Quoted overeds corjiorate bonds ﬁxcd 28, 020,
Cash 12 938,
Infrastruchire assets 49,000
Frechold property 17,600 17,600 1.6
Other 134, 488 130,984 . 1.60..,
“Total 967425 ) 899,984 1.60

*The.Company has a long:term lcase with Skanska qu_z_S_l_r’uctior_x;Scwicgs Trusiees Limited (a related party).

2021 2020
£2000 £2000
‘Actial refurn on fund assets L 77,478 . 103,960

‘The, expcclcd long-term relurns on assets assumption is-assessed by considering the, currcnit 16vel of cxpected Fisk-free
‘inyestmerits in. ‘quictéd geveinfent borids.
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28. Employce benefit obligations - continued

Analysis of the amount charged to the profit or loss

Current service cost
Employee contribution
Total operating charge

Analysis of the amount charged to Other Finance Cost

Expected return on pension scheme asséts
Intcrest on pension liabilities
Net finance return

Andlysis of amount recognised in Statement of Comprehiensive Income

Actual retum less cxpected retumn on assets

Experiencc gains and losses on liabilities

Clianges in demographic assumptions

Changes in financial assumptions

Actuarial gain/(loss) recognised in statement of comprehensive income

Cumulative loss recognised in §tatement of comprehensive income

‘Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation
Present value of obligation 1st January

Interest cost '

Benefits paid

Actuarial (gains)/losses

Obligation at 31st December

Changes in fair value of fund assets
Fair value of plan dssets, 1st January
Expected retum on fund assets
Employeér contribution

Benefits paid

Administraiive expenses

Actuaridl gains

Fair value-at 31st December

Scheme surplus/(deficit)
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2021 2020
£2000 £000
2021 2020
£:000 £1000
12,517 16,012

(12,821). (16,548)
(304) (536)
2021 2020
£:000 £000
64,961 87,948
5,164 (90,250)
70,125 (6.897)
(136,604) (206,729)
928,099 840,819
12,821 16,548
(23,205) (24,113)
(5.164) 94,845
912 551 928,099
899,984 807,748
12,517 16,012
15,030 14,547
(23,205) (24,113)
(1,862) (2,158)
64,961 87,948
967,425 899,984
54,874 . (28,115)




Skanska UK Ple (Registeréd number: 00784752)

Notcs to tlic Consalidated Financial Smtcmcnts
For Thi Year ‘Ended ‘I1st December 2021

28. Employce bencfit obligations - continuéd

History of expérignce gains and losses:

2021 2020 2019 2018
Difference betwéen ¢xpected and actual return. » B
on’scheime asséts £'000: 64,961 87,948 87,878 (34,403)
"Perceniagé of scheme assels %. . 6.7% 9.8% 10.9% (4.8%) -
Experience gains and losses on schemic o '
liabilitics £2000: - (4,595) - 11,128
Perccntage of scherie liabititics % = .-.{0.5%) - 1:5%
Total amount rccogmsed in statement-of . A
‘comprehensive income £'000: 70,125 (6, 897) {11,538) 35,654
Percéntage.of scheme ligbilifics % 7.7% (0.7%) (1 4%) 4.8%

Sensitivity Analysis

‘The sensitivity analysis is based on c:uslmg circumstances, assumpiions and populations. Senmtmty of pension oblngatmn at

the year-end to chifiges in assumptions

Total pension liability at 31st December:

Estimated decredse in pensmn liability if discount ratc increases by 0. 25%;

‘Estimated: increase’in peasion llablhly if discount- tate decreases by 0.25%

‘Estimated intreasc in pension liability if inflition rate increases by 0.25%

Estimated décreasc in pension linbility ifiriflation rate decreases by 0.25%

b) The Federated Pension Plan

2021 2020
£2000 _£'000
912,551 ..928,099.
(43,010 (43,473),
45,933 : 46,843
22,123 32,304
(21,385) (28,753)

The Group also sporsofs The Fedenitcd Pension Plan, a defined: benefit pension plan. The benefit provided by this plan is a
final salary bencf L. The assets of the’ Pldn e héld separitely under Trust:from those of the Gmup dnd are invested by the
Trus(ee, hnvmg token appropnatc investmerit advice: Asat3 15t Detember 2021, in sccordance with thé Plan rules there were
no oumimdmg con\nbnuons The pension contnbuuons dre sel by the Trustees based on the advice of thie Find actuary. The
‘Groilp expes (6 confribute approxn_mutcly £3 & willion to the plah in the next financial year.

“The. following valuation is-an update of the'actuary' s valuglion at'Sih April 2019. The actuarial valuaunn in accordance with
‘IAS 19-used:tli¢ projected unit-actiiafial valtation based on' the followirig assumptionis: '

2021

(%)
Inflation 325
Riite of increase of saldrics 3.50
Rate of i ingrease of pension, 325
Ratg ofincrénse of deferred. pensions 325
Pre and post retiremént rdtes (0 discount Scheme liabilities 1.60
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2020
(%)

2019
(%)

3.00

2018
%)

3.25
3.50
3.25
3.25
275



Skanska UK Plc (Registercd number: 00784752)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For The Year Ended 31st December 2021

28. Employee benefit obligations - continued

Life expectancy after age 65 is 22 ‘years (2020: 22 years) for men and 24 years (2020: 24 years) far womed. The financial
position of the scheme based on the above assumiptions is detailed below:

2021 2020 2019 2018

£2000 £000 £2000 £000

Scheme liabilities (99,306) (94,622) (87,546) (73,411)
Scheme assets 98413 91,406 82,842 68,473
Scheme deficit (893 (3,216) (4,704) (4:938)

The fair value of the fund assets and the expected retumn on those assets are as follows:

Valuation Valuation Expected Expected

of assets of assets retuin return

2021 2020 2021 2020

£:000 £°000 % %

Quoted equitics 44,744 55913 2.00 3.00
Quoted gilts fixed 48,424 35,140 2.00 2.00
Quoted corporafe bonds ) 5,245 - 2.00 2.00
Cash ) - 353 2.00 2.00
Total 98,413 91,406 2.00 2.00

The expected longsierm rctums on: assets assumption is assessed by considering the current level of cxpecied Tisk-free
investments'in quoted governmeént bonds.

Analysis of amount recognised to profit or loss

2021 2020

£000 £000

Cumrent service cost 3,250 3,243

Employec ¢ontribution (448) (434)

Total operating charge 2,802 2,809

Analysis of amount charged to Other Finance Cost

2021 2020

£000 £°000

Expecicd retun on pension scheme assets 1,292 1,672

Tntercst on pension liabilities (1,333) (1,764)

Net finance retumn ) (41 ~(92)
Analysis of amount recognised.in statementi of comprehensive income

' 2021 2020

£000 £°000

Actial rcturn less cxpected return on assets ‘3_,'893 5,332

Experience gains and losses on liabilities (924) 2,067

Changes it demographic assumiptions = -

Changes in financial assumptions (1,087) (6,094)

Actuarial gain recogniscd in statcment of comprehensive income 1,882 . 1,305

Cumulative loss recognised in statcment of comprehensive income (11.876) ) (13,758)
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:Notes to thé Consolidated Financidl Statements’
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28, Employee béinefit obligations - Eontinued

ZM_pycjinétj( in-the present value of defined bencfit obligatiof .

2020
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2021
£7000 £'000
Prescrit value of obligation 1st January. 94,622 87,546
Service cost 3,250 3,243
‘Inigiest cost 1,333 1,764
‘Bentfits paid (i 910) (1,958)
Agtuarial 1osses ;z,ou 4,027
Clasiiig balance, 315t December ".99.306: . 94620
Changes:in fair-valuc of fund assets
2021 2020
£2000 £'000
Fair valué of plah assets, 1st Januiry 91,406 82,842
E‘cpcctcd n:tum on plan‘asscts 1,292 1,672
t 3407 3,278
448 434
(1,91 0) (] 958)
(123) (194)
_ 3893 5332
Closmg bnlnnce 31st Deceribier 98,4134 . ,_:.,;',,:9;1‘;_40'64, )
‘History of ¢xperience gains and 165ses:
2021 2020 2019 2018
Difference between cgpcétcd,an'd' actual féturn
on:scheme assets £7000: 3, 893 5,332 11,084 (8, 147)
Percentage of schieme asscts % e 4% 6% 13% (6%) .
.Expericdce gams and 19ssés on scheme o o ]
Tiabilitics €000 (924) 2,067 (3,12) (243)
Percenlage of scheme liabilitics % a% . 2% . (4%) )
Total amount secognis ised.in statemetit of N »
comprehensive i income:£'000: 1,882 1,305. (201) (601)
Pcreentage of schemie liabilitics % 2% 1% (=) (1%)
The sensitivity analysis is based on exiéﬁng circumstances, assumptions; and populations
Scnitivity of pension obligation at the year-cnd to-changes in assumptions
2021 2020
£ 000 £°000
Tatal: p;éﬁéibn. liability‘ar 315t Déceniber 99:306 94,622
Estimated decreasc.in pen jon liability if diséount rdte icreases by 0:25% (5,036). (5.123)
Esiimatéd increase i pénsion lidbility i dvscount rate decreascs by 0:25%, 5,935 5,448
Estimated.incregse in pension llabllxty if inflation fate increases by 0.25% 6,186 5318
“Estirnated-déérease in pension llablhly if mﬁauon raie decreases by 0.25% (5:263): (4,707) .




Skanska UK Plc (Registered number: 00784752)

‘Notes to the Consolidated I'innncinl Sta(emenis
For The Year Ended 31st December 2021

28. Employee bienefit obligations < continued

€) The McNicholas Plc Retiremert Benefits Scheme

“The Group also sponsors The McNicholas Plc Retiremenit Benefits Scheme, a defined benefit plan. The assets of the Scheme
are held sepanitely under Trust-from those off the Group and are invested by the Trustce, having taken appropnntc invéstment
-advice. Ast 31st December 2021 in accordance with the Scheme rules there were no outstanding contributions. The pension
coiitribulions are set by the Trustces bascd on ihe advice of the Fund actuary. The Group does not expect to conmbule to the

plan in the next financial year.

For. The McNicholas Plc Retirement Benefit Scheme the Group belicves there is not an unconditional right of refund and
theréfore under IAS 19 and IFRIC 14, the Group oaly fecagnises the asset of the pension fund vp to the limit of the liability

_(\he asset ceiling).

The scheme was closed fo both hew members and future accruals in 2003,

The valuation below is an update qf the actuarial valuation at 28th February 2018. The actunrial valuation in accordance with
IAS 19 used the piojected unit cost method besed on the following assumptions:”

2021 2020 2_0}9 2018

(%) (%) (%) (%)

Inflation 3.25 3.00 3.00 3.25

Rat¢ of increase of salaries 3.50 3.25 325 3.50

Rate ofincrease of- pension 3.10 290 3.00 325

Rate of increase for deferred pensions 265 2.30 3.00 3.25

Pre and post retirement rates to discoint scheme linbilities 1.60 1.40 2.00 2,75

Life expectancy ‘afier age 65 is 22 years (2020: 22 years) for men and 24 ycars (2020: 24 years) for women,

The financial position of the scheme based on the.above assimptions is detailed below:

2021 2020 2019 2018

£000 £'000 £'000 £:000

Schemc liabilitics (21,109) (21,221) (22,223) (20,285)

Scheme assets excluding asset ceiling 24,822 24,901 22,632 20,212

Less asset &eiling provision (3.713) (3.680) (409) (742

Pension deficit -. - - (815)
The fiir value of the fund assets and the expected returh on thosc assets are as follows:

Valuation Valuation ‘Expécted Expccted

of assets of assets return return

2021 2020 2021 2020

£2000 £2000 % %

Quited UK cquities 1,454 1,210 2,00 2.00

Quoted UK bonds 10,297 11,886 2.00 2.00

Other 13,071 11,805 2.00 2.00

Total 24,822 24,901 2.00 2.00
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28. Employee benefit obligations — continped

The expecled long:term relumns on assels assumption is
investments'in‘quoted govemment bonds.

Analysis.of the amount charged to profit or loss.

assessed by considering the current level of expected fisk-free

2021 2020
£:000 £°000
Current service cost - -
Analysis of amount charged to Other Finance Cost
2021 2020
£000 £'000
Expected return on pension scheme assets 294 439
Interest on pension, liabilities (294) (439)
Nect finance retuim - -
Analysis of amouni recognised in statement of comprehensive income ]
2021 2020
£000 £°000
Actual return less expected return.on assets (2) (901)
Experience gains and losses on:liabilities (243) 230
Changes in demographic assumplions - =
Changes in financial assumptions 245 671
Effect of the asset ceiling ) - -
Actuarial loss recognised in:statemient of compréhensive income - B
Cumulative gain recogniscd in statement of comprchensive income o 1,921 1,921
Movenicnt ini the present value of defincd benefit obligation
2021 2020
£2000. £'000
Prescnt value of obligation’ | Jariuary 2j,221 22223
Interest cost 294 439
Benefits paid (404) (540)
Actarisl gains (2) (901)
Closing balance, 31 December: 21,109 21,221
Changes in fair valuc of pian assets
2021 2020
£000 £000
Fair valuc of plan assets, 1* Janudry 21,221 22,223
Expecied.retum on plan asséts 294 439
Benefits paid (404) (540)
Actuarial losses ) (901)
Closing balance, 31* December 21,109 21,22}




Skanska UK Plc (Registered number: 00784752)

Notes to the Consolidatéd Financlal Statcmnents
'For The Year Ended 31st Decemiber 2021

28. ‘Employee benefit obligatioris - continised

History of experiénce gains and lossés:

2021 2020 2019 2018
'Difference between éxpected and dctual return
dn scheme dsséts £7000; [¢)] (901) 1,640 (1,239)
Pcrcenlage of scheme nssets % - (4%) . %, .. (6%)
Experience gaing and. losses on scheme ) ) .
liabilities £7000: : (243) 230 450 48
Pemenlage of sclieme liabilities % ) (1%) 1% 2% ) =
Total amount recognised in statcment of
comprchcnswe incoime £'000: - - (30) '(944)
Perccntige of schicic liabilitics % N - () . (5%)
The Soosiiivity dnalysis is based on.existing circumstances, assumptions, and populations
Sesitivity of pension obligation at the year-end to changes in‘assumptions
2021 2020
£1000 £000
Totd! pension liability at 31 st: Deceinber 21,109 __ 21221,
‘.Estxmarcd decredse.in pcnsmn Ilablllty if discoint rate increases by 0,25% (1,009) (1,033)
Estimated increase in pension. liability if discount rate-decreases by 0.25% 1,060 .1,088.
‘Estimaied increase in. pension ligbility if inflation rate increascs by 0.25%. 844 803
Estimatcd dccreasc in pension Jiability if inflation rate decreases by 0.25% . (798). (773)

29. Ultimate parcnt-Cor__npguy

The immeédigte parent undeftaking is Skanska Consiruction Holdings UK Limited, 8 Company incorpornted in the UK.

The ultimate parent Company is Skanska AB, a Company incorporated in Sweden, which heads the smallest and largest Group
in which-the results of the- Group and Company arc consolidated. The registered address for Skanska AB is Warfvinges vig

25, SE-112 74 Stockholm Sweden.

Copies of the Skanska AB financial stitements can be obtained from Skanska UK Plc at Maplé Cross House, Deahari Way,

Rickmansworth, Herts WD3 9SW-

30, Contingént liabilities

“The Group faces contingent liabilities in respect of guaraniees. and' potential .claims by third parties under «contracting
-ggrecments entered into by them in the ormal coursé of business. ‘These are provided as liabilitics.only to the extent that the,
Diréctors believe that ‘the Group has a legal .or cansitructive obligation as a result of a past event and it is probible that an,
ouitflow of ¢économiic bericfit will be rcqulred to séitle ihe obligation. Conungcm liabilities relating 10 the Group s-portion of
the _]Dln[ and scveral liabiljtics for the obligations of joint apcrations totalled £9, 855 000 (2020: £83,293,000).
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31. Related party disclosurecs

Transactionis betwieed the parént entity; sibsidiary corpanics and other Group underiakings are detailed below. Balances with

the Parent entity, subsndlm-y companies and other Group undermkmgs are disclosed in the debtors and creditors notes. Amounts
owed to and from ihese entities are unsecured and interest free.

Related party Nature of relationship Good/service provided Trinsactions in year
2021 2020
£000 £/000
‘Skanskn T ‘| Fellow Group undertaking, Ullimutﬁly‘ Skanskn UK Ple paid dividends - 16,100 735.000
Construction: owned by Skanskn AB fo this Entity in the year,
Holdings UK .
Limited _
Skimaka AB ~ Ultimale gurcnt Campany of Skanska Sicanin AD provides (R 1314
UK Ple munngement sérvices to Skanska
. UK Ple
Skanska AB Ultimate parent Canmpany of Skanskn Mkh AB rceeives . 635 756
UK Plc management scrvices:from
. Skanska UK Plc
Skanska TAM Skanska TAM Limiicd holds Public Skanska UK Pic provides B 7
Limited Financial Initiative in on accounting services to e entity,
i bchnlfuflhc Sknnskn Pension Fund ' B
Skanska TAM Skanska TAM (Nordic) [.in':imj olds Skansks UK PLC provides 8 53
‘(Nordic) Limited “Public Financiol Tnltiaiive investa nting services to the entity.
on hchalf of the p:nsmn schicmes of
fellow’ group urd ings . _
Shkangka Sknnslm Cnnstnmmm Scrvices Skanska UK. Plc reatsan office 1,388 1,632
Construction me:c Lu-mu:d is.0 corporuic trustee in Doncaster from the Skanska
Services Trustes of the Skanskn Perisioi Fund Pension Fund.
Limited _
Skanska Fellow Group undenaking, Ultimatcly Skanskn UK Pic provid 3
Residential owned by Skanska AB mmmgcmcm und fhcihucs .
‘Developments ) management services to te
UK Limited. entity.
BoKlok UK Felldw Group underiaking, Ultimately Skanska UK PLC provide 73.457 3,047
Limited dwned by Skanskn AB poyroll services and stafl costs
~ . | to the entity.
Skansim USA 'Fcllnw Group undcrml\m;, Ultimately -Sknnskxg USA recharges for siaff N 618 440
ovwned by Skanska AB costs provided to Skanska UK
Ple.
Skunska Poland ‘Fellow Group undertaking, Ulumzm:ly Skansgka UK. PLC recharpes for "45 16
' owned: by Sleanska AB -~ slnﬂ’co‘sts provided to.the entity. .
Sknnekn Sverige Fellow Group undertnking, Ultimately Sknnaku UK PLC rrclmrgcs for - 34
AB owncd by Skancka AB staffcosts provided to the chijiy:
Skanska CDE SP Fellow Group undcnukm;, Ultlmately Skanska' UK PLC mchnrges for - 270
2.00 owned by Skanska AB slaff eosts provided to the entity.

Remuneration of key management personnel
Details of ‘remuneration of'the Dircctors, who are the key managcément persennci of the Company, arc contained. in Notc 6.
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32. Recoanciliation of profit before income tax to cash. used in operations

Group )
2021 2020

£'000 £000

Profit before income tax: 73,266 22436
Depréciation and impairment 14,777 20,370
Profit on salc of business operations (29,069) -
JIncrease in provisions 18,753 13,681
Employce owncrship scheme 2,490 1,986
Pension scrvice cost 2,802 2,809
Tension company contfibution (16,452), (15,473)
Finance costs 2,022 3,170
Finance income . (2,876) (2,931)
65,713 46,048

Deccrease in inventories 94 4232
Decrease in. trade and other receivables 6,491 69,683
Incredsc/(decrease) in trade and dther payablcs 13,191 (113,640)

Cash generated from operations 85,489 ) 6,323,

Company

' 2021 2020
£°000 £000

Profit before income tax, 24,991 32,306
Depreciation and impairment 9,657 12,091
Imipairmeént oFinvéstments 340 -
Dividends received. (40,000) -
‘Employee ownership scheme T 2,490 1,986
Pension coimpany coniribution (13,168) (12,389)
Finance:costs 1,759 2,490
Finance incomc (4.308) (3,615)
(18,239) 32,369
Deérease/(increase) in irade and other receivables 620 (46,993)
Decreasc in trade and other payables (6,548) 10,127)
Cash used in operations (24,167). (24.251)
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33, Joint opcrations

The Group has entcred into a nimber of Joint operations ‘with different partricts for ihe purposcs of undertaking specific
contracts, The pnnclpnl Joint arrahgéments within'the Group (excluding those between Group companies) are as follows:

‘Name of Joint arrangements Address Joint arrangement partners Coautrol
Skanska Construction UK Limited A )
Skanska BAM Northern Hub Jéint Ventuie 1.7 BAM Nuttall Limited 50%
Costain Skanska C405 Joint Ventire L2 Costain. Limited '50%
Costain Skanska C360 Joint Verituré 1,2 Costain Limited 50%
Costain Skanska C412 Joint Venture 1,2 Costain Limited 50%'

. Balfour Beatty Utility Solutions Limited / a0
SMB Joint Venture 143 ’ MWH Trcatment Limited 33%

A kre e . UK Grid Solutions Limited / :

SEESA AMS Joint Venture . 1,9,10 "Mott Macdonald Limited 20%
Costain Skanska Joint Venture -LP T 12 Costdin Limited 47.38%
tRITO ) 1,8 Morrison Water Service Limitéd 50%
‘HS2 Enabling 1,2 Costain Limited 50%
HSZ Main Works SCS'S1. 1,2,6 Stmbag AG-UK Branch / Costain Limited 34%
HS2 Main Works SCS S2 1,2,6 Slmbug ‘AG-UK Branch / Costain. Limited 34%
Skanska Porr A-Hak Jmm Venture 111,12 Porr Bau GmbH / A-Hak Intemational B.V. 40%
Bakerloo Linc Link Joint Venture 1,2 Costain Limitéd 50%

1,24 Balfour Beatty Civil Engmeenng Limited / ,
Al4 Huntingdon to Cambridge Cosiain Liriied 33%
Skanska ESS Construciion Handelsbalag 1,13 Skanska SvengeAB 25%

Tensberg Joint Venture 1,14 Skinska Norgc AS 30%

Skanska UK PLC »
RAF Molésworth 1,15 Black & Veitch Limited  50%

Cementation Skanska Limited . _
Cementation Skangka Balfour Bdtty GE Jotnt 1.3 Balfour Beatty Ground Enginieering Liniited ~ 50%
Venture SRR ;

Skanska J.V. Projects Limited _ ] A ,
Skanska Balfour Beatty M25 Joint. Venture- 1,4 Balfour Bedtty Civil Enginecring Limited 50%

The addresses of these Joint arrangements are as follows:

1 Maple Cross House, Denharh Way, Maple Cross, Rickmansworth, l-Icrt{‘ ordshire, WD3 9SW
2 Costain House, Vanwall Business Park, Maiderih¢ad, Berkshire, SL6 4UB

3The Curve Bmldmg Axis Business Park. Hurricane Wny_ Langlcy Berkshire SL3 8AG

45 Churchnll Place, Canary Wharf, London, E14 SHU

5 Spnng Lodgc, 172 Chester Road, Hclsby, Cheshuc, WA6 OAR

6 Strabag: AGUK Branch The’ Tower 3rd Floor 65. Buckmgham Gate, London, SWIE 6AS
7 St James House, Knoll Rond, Cumberley, Surrey, GU1S 3XW

8 Abcl SrhithHouse, Guninels Wood Road, Stevenage, Herts SGI 28T

9 St Leonards Bulldmg, Harry Keernve, Stafford, STI6 TWT

10 Mot Macdondld House, 8-10 Sydenham Road, Croydon, Surrey, CRO 2EE

11 Absbcrggnssc ‘47, 1100 Vienna, Austria

12 Steenoven 2-6 NL-41 96 HG Tncht. the Netherlands

13 Warfvinges vag 25, SE-112 74, Stockholm Sweden

14 Lakkegata 53 0187, Oslo, Norway

15 | Famham Road, Guildford, Surrey, GU2 4RG

34, Past bidldrice sheet events’

There hnve been no post balance shect events that require disclosure or adjustment in thesc financidl statements.
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Notes to tlie:Const ed Financial:State
T6r The Year Ended 315t December 2021

35. Totul resultsiincluding discontinued operations

The D *have p d the informati o0 belowas an ive:performan icasure.so‘to demons ‘the totdl ues-and costs:tHat were generated by the Group.
2021 2020
Notes ) £'000 . ~ £000. )
Continuing  Discontinued Total: Continuing.  Discontipued Total
Revenue 4 1,122,698 126,888 11249586 1,122278 ‘334,040 ‘1,456 318
‘Costof sales' (1.005;754) (L10.644)  {1.116,398) (1,042,310). (310,099 €1,352,409)
‘Gross profit. 116,944 16,244 133,188 79,968 23,941 103;909
Other operating-income 5 302 - 302 4,018 387 4,405
Administrative expenses (83,538) (6,401) {89;939). (74,810) (13,831) (85,641)
Operating profit: : ) 33,708 9,843 43,551 . 12,176 10,497 22,673
Gdin andisposal’of businéss operati 10 - -29,069 29,0069 - - -
Profit-beforesinterest snd:tax 33,708 38552 72,620 12,176 10:497 22,673
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